# THE GEO-INSTITUTE OF THE AMERICAN SOCIETY OF CIVIL ENGINEERS

The American Society of Civil Engineers (ASCE) created the Geo-Institute (G-I) in October 1996. The Geo-Institute is an organization of individual geo-professionals, organizational members, and affiliated local Chapters that are members of ASCE sections and branches, and affiliated graduate student organizations located at colleges and universities. Geo-professionals include engineers, scientists, engineering geologists, and technologists who have technical interests in soil, rock, and the fluids they contain and who have as a common goal the application of that interest to the improvement of the environment, the mitigation of natural hazards, and the economical construction of engineered facilities.

Goal: The primary goal of the Geo-Institute is to advance the geo-professional community.

Vision: The G-I's vision over the upcoming five years centers around four primary areas.

- Being a more member-centric association
- Being the primary source of career development support for geo-professionals
- Building collaboration among groups serving our profession, and
- Developing a stronger business model

*Values to Maintain*: The G-I recognizes that key values for the geo-profession need to be maintained including the following:

- Long-standing high-level reputation within the geo-profession
- Overall best source of information and networking for our profession
- High value publications for the membership, and
- An international, national, and local presence

Strategies: The G-I is envisioning the following key strategies over the upcoming five years to realize its vision:

- Reviewing existing membership demographic data
- Gathering feedback formally and informally from members and leaders who support our members
- Surveying our members
- Being more responsive to member feedback
- Maintaining and improving the G-I website
- Making the Geo-Congress more effective in promoting career development and serving the needs of the profession;
- Assembling the best professional development resources
- Seeking joint activities with affiliated organizations
- Formalizing alliances with regulatory agencies
- Maintaining and expanding our current alliances;
- Investigating alternative conference and subscription models

- Assessing potential for new revenues tied to the creation of new web resources
- Expanding our continuing education and publication offerings

The Geo-Institute serves as the United States of America member society of the International Society for Soil Mechanics and Geotechnical Engineering (ISSMGE).

The Geo-Institute is led by a Board of Governors (BoG) consisting of eight voting and one nonvoting member. The nonvoting governor is the Geo-Institute Director who serves as board Secretary. The International Secretary to the ISSMGE frequently attends Board of Governors meetings.

The 2017 Board of Governors members are:

Garry H. Gregory, Ph.D, P.E., D.GE, M.ASCE, *President*Youssef M. A. Hashash, Ph.D., P.E., F.ASCE, *Vice President*Beth A. Gross, Ph.D., P.E., M.ASCE, *Treasurer*Kord Wissman, Ph.D., P.E., D.GE, M.ASCE, *Past President*James Collin, Ph.D., P.E., D.GE, F.ASCE
Patrick J. Fox, Ph.D., P.E., M.ASCE
Robert B. Gilbert, Ph.D., P.E., D.GE, M.ASCE
Kancheepuram N. Gunalan "Guna," Ph.D., P.E., D.GE, F.ASCE
Bradley E. Keelor, *Secretary* 

Additional information about Geo-Institute strategic plan, committees and activities can be obtained by contacting the Geo-Institute at ASCE Headquarters at 1-800-548-ASCE (2723) ext. 6350.

## **Geo-Institute Bylaws**

#### Article 1. Name

1.0 *Name*. The name of this Institute shall be The Geo-Institute, hereinafter referred to as the "Geo-Institute," of the American Society of Civil Engineers, hereinafter referred to as the "Society."

## Article 2. Purpose/Values/Scope

- 2.0 *Purpose*: The core purpose of the Geo-Institute is to advance the geo-engineering community.
- 2.1 *Values*: The core values of the Geo-Institute are: responsiveness to members' needs, ethical behavior, service to the profession and the society, innovation, technical excellence and inclusiveness.
- 2.2 *Scope*: The scope of the Geo-Institute shall encompass the geo-science, geo-engineering, and geotechnology related to improving the built environment, mitigating natural hazards, and constructing engineered facilities.

## **Article 3. Organization**

- 3.0 *Organization*. The Geo-Institute is organized within the Society. All policies and activities of the Geo-Institute shall be consistent with and subject to:
  - 3.0.1 Society's Certificate of Incorporation, Constitution, Bylaws, Rules of Policy and Procedure, and Code of Ethics;
  - 3.0.2 applicable federal, state, and local antitrust, trade regulation, and other laws, regulations and legal requirements;
  - 3.0.3 all requirements to maintain the status of the Society as a not-for-profit organization exempt from federal income tax under sections 501(a) and 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1954 (hereinafter referred to as "the Code") qualifying at all times as an organization to which tax deductible contributions may be made pursuant to applicable sections of the Code;
  - 3.0.4 all requirements imposed by the relevant jurisdiction for the maintenance by the Society of any license, permit, or authority it may hold to conduct activities and do business as a foreign not-for-profit corporation within that jurisdiction; and
  - 3.0.5 such other policies and procedures as are authorized under these documents.
- 3.1 Relationships with Other Associations and Federations. The Geo-Institute may form relationships with other groups and may serve as the United States of America member society to various international organizations, as approved by the Geo-Institute.

#### Article 4. Membership

4.0 *Membership Qualifications*. Membership shall be open to any Society member in good standing as well as to other persons who are interested in advancing the goals and purposes of the Geo-Institute, and who meet the qualifications defined below:

**Regular** (or "full") membership is open to individuals who can demonstrate one (1) or more of the following qualifications:

a. A baccalaureate degree in engineering, the physical sciences, the life sciences or mathematics; or

b. Two (2) years of full-time-equivalent study in any discipline at a college or university plus five (5) additional years of experience in the geo-industry. Up to two (2) additional years of full-time-equivalent study in a university may be counted as two (2) years' experience in the geo-industry; or

- c. Eight (8) years of experience in the geo-industry; or
- d. Any Society member in good standing who enrolls in the Geo-Institute according to procedures established by the Society and the Geo-Institute.
- Student membership is open to full-time students pursuing a post-baccalaureate degree in engineering, the
  physical sciences, the life sciences or mathematics and undergraduate students enrolled in civil or geological
  engineering programs.
- Organizational membership is open to associations, government agencies, and corporations interested in
  advancing the object of the Institute. Organizational membership does not imply that all members of the
  organization are members of the Geo-Institute.
- **Premier organizational** membership is open to associations, government agencies, and corporations interested in advancing the scope of the Institute. Premier Organizational membership does not imply that all members of the organization are members of the Geo-Institute. Premier Organizational members benefit from access to exclusive client-oriented events hosted by the Geo-Institute.
- 4.1 *Member Participation*. Members in good standing may be appointed to and participate on Geo-Institute committees. Regular members in good standing may vote on all Geo-Institute procedural issues and in elections put forth for the general membership, and may qualify for an elected position on the Board of Governors after holding membership in the Geo-Institute for a period of one (1) year. A Member whose dues are not in arrears shall be considered in good standing.

## 4.2 Non-Member Participation

- 4.2.1 Non-members of the Geo-Institute may participate as non-voting members on the Geo-Institute's committees and task forces.
- 4.2.2 Non-members of the Geo-Institute may participate as voting members of the Geo-Institute's Standards Committees.
- 4.2.3 Conferences and other organized activities of the Geo-Institute shall be open to all persons with an interest in the geo-industry through payment of designated fees.
- 4.3 Admission of Members. Applicants shall be admitted to membership in the Geo-Institute in such manner as the Geo-Institute Director may direct according to the policies and criteria determined by the Board of Governors. Admission decisions made by Geo-Institute or Society staff, under the direction of the Geo-Institute Director, are subject to review by the Membership Committee and/or Board of Governors. All Society members in good standing are eligible for Geo-Institute membership, and shall be admitted according to procedures established by the Geo-Institute Director and the Society.
- 4.4 *Resignation*. Any member of the Geo-Institute in good standing may resign by a written communication to the Geo-Institute Director.
- 4.5 Expulsion. Any member may be expelled from the Geo-Institute for conduct in violation of the Bylaws, or the Society's Certificate of Incorporation, Constitution, Bylaws, Rules of Policy and Procedure or Code of Ethics, as applicable, or for conduct which, in the opinion of the Board of Governors, is improper and prejudicial to the best interest of the Society or the Geo-Institute. Except in any case to which the third paragraph of this Section applies, a decision to expel shall be preceded by a fair hearing at a meeting of the Board of Governors.

Separation from membership in the Geo-Institute and disciplinary proceedings shall generally follow the procedures outlined in the Society's Bylaws, except that in any case to which the third paragraph of this Section does not apply, the Geo-Institute Board of Governors acts on behalf of the Geo-Institute. Decisions of the Board of Governors shall not be open to appeal except in cases involving recommendation by the Board of Governors to expel a Society member, in which cases appeal may be made to the Society Board of Direction, whose decision is final.

Cases involving Society members accused of violating the Society Code of Ethics shall be referred to the Society Committee on Professional Conduct for determination on behalf of the Geo-Institute as provided in the Society's Bylaws, in lieu of the Geo-Institute's Board of Governors.

#### Article 5. Dues

- 5.0 Dues. Membership dues shall be established by the Board of Governors.
- 5.1 *Payment of Dues.* The annual dues payable by the Geo-Institute membership, as of January 1 of each calendar year, shall be as follows:

Individual Non-Society Member: \$105

Included in Society dues and subject to fee if additional Institute

Organizational Member: \$1000 Premier Organizational Member: \$2000 Student Member: \$0

- 5.2 Delinquency. Not later than December 1 of each year, the Institute Director shall mail to each Geo-Institute member, at the latest address known to the Institute, a statement of current indebtedness, if any, of the Institute member and the amount of dues for the ensuing calendar year. Regular and timely payment of membership dues is a condition of continued membership in the Geo-Institute, unless a member shall have been relieved from the payment thereof by the Board of Governors.
- 5.3 Penalties. Any Geo-Institute member whose dues are more than three (3) months in arrears shall be so notified by the Institute Director and shall lose the right to receive publications normally furnished without charge to Geo-Institute members in good standing. A Geo-Institute member whose dues are six (6) months in arrears shall lose the right to vote. The Institute Director shall notify a Geo-Institute member whose dues become nine (9) months in arrears. Any Geo-Institute member whose dues become twelve (12) months in arrears shall forfeit connection with the Geo-Institute provided, however, that the Board of Governors, for cause deemed by it to be sufficient, may extend the time of payment of dues and for the application of those penalties. No dues will be refunded.
- 5.4 Remission of Dues. The Board of Governors, for cause deemed by it to be sufficient, may excuse any Institute member from the payment of annual dues, temporarily or permanently; may remit the whole or any part of the dues which may be in arrears; and may remove any name from the list of those permanently excused from the payment of dues.

#### **Article 6. Board of Governors**

- 6.0 The affairs, activities, and concerns of the Geo-Institute shall be under the direction of a Board of Governors, hereinafter referred to as the "Board," consisting of between seven (7) and nine (9) members.
- 6.1 Composition of the Board. At all times, at least five (5) Governors shall have been nominated and elected under the direction of the Nominations and Elections Committee according to the Geo-Institute Bylaws and procedures established by the Geo-Institute. The Board of Governors may appoint up to three (3) additional Governors. One (1) additional Governor shall be appointed by the Society's Board of Direction.

Each elected Governor shall be a member in good standing of the Geo-Institute for a period of a least one (1) year prior to election, unless waived by the Board. Each appointed Governor, must be a member in good standing of the Geo-Institute at the time of appointment. All governors shall be members of the Geo-Institute in good standing throughout his/her/their service as a Governor. The Geo-Institute Director shall serve as a non-voting Governor and as the Secretary to the Board. Failure to meet the aforementioned qualifications shall be grounds for removal as a Governor.

- 6.2 Nominations, Elections, and Appointments. Geo-Institute nominations and elections shall be directed by a Nominations and Elections Committee, hereinafter referred to as "the Committee," which has the responsibility of developing nominations for the Board and directing the elections. One (1) new governor shall be elected each year. Governors appointed by the Society's Board of Direction, shall be appointed every other year and serve a two (2) year term.
  - 6.2.1 A Nominations and Elections Committee shall be appointed annually by the Board. The Committee shall consist of five (5) members, constituted as determined by the Board. All five (5) members of the Committee shall be individual members in good standing of the Geo-Institute, and at least three (3) members of the Committee shall not be current Governors. The Vice President of the Geo-Institute shall be a member of the Committee and serve as the chair of the Committee.
  - 6.2.2 The Nominations and Elections Committee shall solicit and receive nominations from the general membership of the Geo-Institute. Such nominations shall be received in the form of a nominating letter to the Committee. No member of the Committee may be nominated.
  - 6.2.3 The Committee shall submit to the Board of Governors a list bearing the names of one (1) or more recommended nominees for each open position. Nominees shall be selected in accordance with the Geo-Institute Procedure for the Nomination and Election of Governors of the Geo-Institute and shall be fully informed of the duties and requirements of the office, and shall consent to their nominations. Geographic distribution and representation of the full technical scope and professional function of the Geo-Institute shall be considered in the Committee's recommendation. The Board is then charged with selecting one (1) individual for each open position from the Committee's list of recommended nominees to appear on the ballot.
  - 6.2.4 If the Committee submits only one (1) nominee for each open position and that individual receives at least eighty percent (80%) support from the Committee, the Committee's recommendation does not require Board approval and the individual's name shall appear on the ballot. In the event this occurs, the Board of Governors may authorize a candidate of its own, provided the individual selected meets the qualifications for a Governor, to appear on the ballot in addition to and along with the Committee-approved nominee.
  - 6.2.5 Once the ballot is announced to the general membership in the official Geo-Institute publication or other appropriate means to include the world wide web, a petition process shall be permitted, with oversight from the Committee, to allow members to add candidates to the ballot.
  - 6.2.6 A ballot bearing the names and brief biographical sketches of all candidates shall be submitted to the membership for their vote, and members shall have thirty (30) days to return their ballot. Write-in candidates shall not be accepted. The candidate(s) receiving the most votes shall become the Governor(s)-Elect. In the event of a tie, selection shall be made by the Board of Governors from the persons so tied.
  - 6.2.7 In the event there is only one (1) candidate on the ballot for each open position after the deadline for petitions is passed, the Board shall have the authority to certify the election results without balloting the membership. The candidate(s) will then become the Governor(s)-Elect.
  - 6.2.8 Each nominee must file a written notice with the Geo-Institute Director prior to the election stating the nominee will serve if elected.

6.3 Term of Office. The term of office of each elected Governor shall be three (3) years and the Governor may be reelected or appointed. The term of office for appointed Governors shall be two (2) years. Previously appointed Governors are eligible to be elected to a single three (3) year term. The term of any Governor shall commence at the end of the annual meeting of the Board at which the term of the Governor's predecessor expires, except in cases where a Governor is appointed to complete an unexpired term. Individuals sitting on the Board as non-voting members shall remain on the Board so long as they remain engaged in their respective capacities.

A Governor may resign at any time by giving written notice of such resignation to the Secretary of the Board.

Any elected officer or Governor shall continue service unless earlier having resigned or been removed, until a successor qualifies and takes office.

6.4 *Vacancies*. Whenever any vacancy occurs in an elected position of the Board, other than by expiration of a Governor's term, it shall be filled without undue delay for not longer than the unexpired remainder of the term as a direct appointment of the remaining Governors.

Whenever any vacancy occurs in an appointed position of the Board, other than by expiration of a Governor's term, it shall be filled for the remainder of the term without undue delay as a direct appointment of the original appointing body.

## 6.5 Meetings

- 6.5.1 Regular Meetings. There shall be a minimum of one (1) Regular Meeting of the Board scheduled each year. Other Regular Meetings may be called by the President, as needed, or by a majority of the Governors. All Governors shall be given at least thirty (30) days notice of Regular Meetings. Notice may be given personally, by first class mail, confirmed facsimile, or by confirmed electronic mail. Agenda items shall be filed with the Secretary in advance of the meeting according to a timetable determined by the Secretary in concert with the President, and the agenda shall be sent to Governors at least five (5) business days in advance of the meeting.
- 6.5.2 *Special Meetings*. Special Meetings of the Board may be called by the President, Vice-President or Secretary at any time upon the request of any two (2) Governors. All Governors must be given at least five (5) days notice of a Special Meeting. Special Meetings shall be limited in scope to the issue or issues specified in the meeting notice.
- 6.5.3 *Quorum*. At all Regular or Special Meetings of the Board, a simple majority of the voting Governors shall be sufficient to constitute a quorum for the transaction of business, and the act of a simple majority of the Governors present at any regular or Special Meeting at which there is a quorum shall be the act of the Board, except as may be otherwise specifically provided by these Bylaws or other applicable instrument or law. If at any such meeting there is less than a quorum present, the presiding officer shall adjourn the meeting to another time and place.
- 6.5.4 Action Without a Meeting. Any action required to be taken at a meeting of the Board, or any action that may be taken at a meeting of the Board, may be taken without a meeting if a consent in writing, setting forth the action so taken, shall be signed by all Governors and be filed with the minutes of the meetings.
- 6.5.5 *Meeting Participation by Alternative Means*. Members of the Board may participate in any meeting of the Board by conference telephone or similar communications equipment by means of which all persons participating in the meeting can hear each other, and such participation in a meeting shall constitute attendance at the meeting.
- 6.5.6 Absences from the Meetings of the Board. Any Governor who does not attend two (2) consecutive meetings of the Board will be automatically removed from the Board as of the conclusion of such second meeting, unless retained by the majority vote of the Board before the conclusion of such second meeting.

6.5.7 The Geo-Institute Director or designee shall be present at all meetings of the Board, except for Executive Sessions of the Board, for which the Geo-Institute Director may or may not be present, as the Board may direct.

6.6 Compensation. Members of the Board, as such, shall not receive any salary or other compensation for their services as Governors, but they shall be entitled to reimbursement of reasonable expenses, if any, incurred by them as Governors, under procedures established by the Board. Nothing herein shall be construed to preclude any Governor from serving the Geo-Institute in any other capacity and receiving compensation for service in that capacity.

#### **Article 7. Officers**

- 7.0 Officers. The officers of the Geo-Institute shall be the President, Vice President, Secretary and Treasurer.
- 7.1 Election and Term of Office. The President, Vice President, and Treasurer of the Geo-Institute shall be Governors. The Vice President and Treasurer shall be elected annually by a simple majority vote of the Board. The Vice President shall be considered the President-Elect and shall assume the office of the President the following year. The Vice President and Treasurer shall have been an elected Governor for at least one (1) year. The President, Vice President, and Treasurer may hold appointed Governor positions near the end of their term of office.
- 7.2 Duties. The President shall be responsible for the general supervision of the affairs of the Board. The President shall preside at all meetings of the Board and of the members of the Geo-Institute. The President may call special meetings of the Board or of the members as may be deemed proper and according to the policies and guidelines as set forth by these Bylaws and by the Board.

The President shall be empowered to appoint any committees and chairpersons for those committees as deemed necessary for the effective functioning of the Geo-Institute, subject to approval of the Board.

The President or the appointed designee shall attend regular and special meetings of the Society's Board of Direction, and report at such meetings on Geo-Institute affairs, if and as from time to time requested by the Society's Board of Direction or by the Society's President or Executive Director.

In the absence of the Geo-Institute President, or in case of the President's inability from any cause to act, the Vice President of the Geo-Institute shall perform the duties of the President. In the case of the President's death, resignation, or withdrawal from office, the Vice President shall become President.

In case of the Vice President's inability from any cause to act, a replacement shall be appointed by the Geo-Institute President with the approval of a simple majority of the Board members present and voting.

The Treasurer shall monitor management of the financial affairs of the Geo-Institute by the Geo-Institute Director, who shall prepare and present quarterly financial reports to the Board of Governors and at the annual meeting of the Geo-Institute.

In case of the Treasurer's inability from any cause to act, a replacement shall be appointed by the Geo-Institute President with the approval of a simple majority of the Board members present and voting.

The Secretary is the Geo-Institute Director. The Institute Director supervises the affairs of the Geo-Institute according to the policies and directions given by the Board. The Secretary shall give notice of, attend and insure minutes are kept of all meetings of the Board, unless excused by the Board therefrom; shall have custody of the minutes; shall approve and admit members of the Geo-Institute, consistent with the Board policy; shall maintain records of the Geo-Institute's income and expenditures and be prepared to present an accounting thereof to the Board of Governors, to the membership, officers, or any duly authorized person or persons when directed to do so by the Board; and shall perform other such duties and have other such powers as may from time to time be delegated by the Board.

7.3 Removal. Elected officers may be removed from office by a two-thirds (2/3) vote of the Board.

7.4 *Institute Director*. The Geo-Institute Director is appointed, and can be removed, with or without cause, by the Executive Director of the Society after consultation with the Board of Governors. The Geo-Institute Director receives policy, program, and budget direction from the Geo-Institute Board and is responsible for the day-to-day management of the Geo-Institute.

The Geo-Institute Director shall appoint all Geo-Institute staff, independent contractors, and other suppliers and agents, subject to direction by the Board of Governors. In making such appointments, he/she shall comply with the human resources policies and procedures of the Society, which shall be applicable to and binding on the Geo-Institute.

## Article 8. Relationship with the International Society for Soil Mechanics and Geotechnical Engineering

- 8.0 Representative to the ISSMGE. The Geo-Institute shall be the United States of America Member Society of the International Society for Soil Mechanics and Geotechnical Engineering (ISSMGE) or its successor.
- 8.1 *International Secretary*. The Board shall select an International Secretary to serve a four (4) year term, which may be renewed at the discretion of the Board. The terms shall begin and end in the odd numbered year in which an ISSMGE conference is normally held. The International Secretary shall not be selected from the membership of the Board, but shall meet with the Board as requested. The International Secretary may be removed at any time by a two-thirds (2/3) majority vote of the Board.
- 8.2 Duties of the International Secretary. The International Secretary shall serve as the formal liaison between the Geo-Institute and its Board and the ISSMGE. In addition, the International Secretary shall perform the specific duties and responsibilities prescribed by the Geo-Institute.
- 8.3 *ISSMGE Dues*. The Board shall be responsible for the annual payment of United States of America Member Society dues to the ISSMGE, as established by the ISSMGE Council.
- 8.4 Duties and Appointments. The Board shall designate delegates to represent the United States on the ISSMGE Administrative Council; cooperate in the organization and conduct of periodic international conferences, both regional and worldwide; recommend members to serve on ISSMGE technical committees; and, when requested, submit the current list of Geo-Institute ISSMGE members, their occupations, and addresses for publication in the ISSMGE List of Members.
- 8.5 *ISSMGE Trust Fund*. The ISSMGE Trust Fund was established as an endowment fund with the residual monies from the XI International Conference on Soil Mechanics and Foundations Engineering held in San Francisco in 1985. The purpose of the endowment is to provide funds to finance the administration and international activities of the United States of America Member Society of the ISSMGE (i.e., the Geo-Institute), and to foster national and international programs that enhance the profession of geotechnical engineering.
- 8.6 Administration of the ISSMGE Trust Fund. The ISSMGE Trust Fund shall be administered by the Board of Governors of the Geo-Institute. The day-to-day activities and expenditures of the ISSMGE Trust Fund shall be managed by the International Secretary, who shall annually prepare a proposed budget for approval by the Board, and an annual report of income and expenses.
- 8.7 Integrity of the ISSMGE Trust Fund. The ISSMGE Trust Fund, and earnings therefrom, is an entity under the sole control of the Geo-Institute as the United States of America Member Society of the International Society for Soil Mechanics and Geotechnical Engineering. When and if the Geo-Institute (which is designated herein as the Member Society) is ever dissolved, the control of this fund shall be vested in the duly named representatives of the United States of America Member Society.

## **Article 9. Membership Meetings**

9.0 Annual Membership Meeting. A general meeting of the membership shall be held each year to conduct any business that might properly come before the Geo-Institute. This meeting shall be encouraged to be held at the annual conference of the Geo-Institute. A minimum attendance of twenty-five (25) Regular Members shall constitute a quorum for the annual general meeting of the Geo-Institute.

At any Annual Membership Meeting, the membership, without notice and by a two-thirds (2/3) vote, may modify or change the rules as to order of business at that meeting.

- 9.1 *Special Meetings*. Special Meetings of the Geo-Institute membership may be called by the Board at any time. At such meetings, the requirement for a quorum remains the same as described above.
- 9.2 *Notice*. The Board must give Members at least thirty (30) days notice of all Annual and Special Meetings. The notice must include a description of the business to be conducted.
- 9.3 *Voting.* A majority of Regular Members where a quorum is present is necessary to make a decision except where some other number is required by law or by these Bylaws. Proxy voting is not permitted. Mail voting is permitted.

#### Article 10. Finance

- 10.0 Fiscal Year. The fiscal year of the Geo-Institute shall be from October 1 through September 30.
- 10.1 *Assets*. All assets held by or for the Geo-Institute are vested in the Society with the exception of the ISSMGE Trust Fund, and shall be handled according to its fiscal policies.
- 10.2 Fiscal Responsibility. The Geo-Institute Board, with due responsibility to the Society's Board of Direction, shall oversee the funds and assets of the Geo-Institute and shall direct the Geo-Institute Director in their management. Neither the Geo-Institute nor any individual Governor, officer, member, employee, or representative thereof shall have any authority, as such, to contract debts for, pledge the credit of, or in any way financially bind the Society.
- 10.3 Geo-Institute Budget. The Geo-Institute budget must be approved by the Geo-Institute Board in accordance with guidelines established by the Society's Board of Direction. Any changes to the budget and any expenditures in excess of budgeted amounts or for unbudgeted items must be approved by the Geo-Institute Board in accordance with the provisions in these Bylaws.
- 10.4 *Revenues*. The Geo-Institute may raise revenue by means other than dues from members and fees for publications, provided such means are consistent with Society policy and the maintenance of ASCE's tax-exempt status. Any proposed solicitations, as well as the proposed acceptance of any grant or donation which contains any restriction, shall first be submitted to and approved as permissible by the Society's Executive Director, who shall investigate and notify the Geo-Institute of his/her determination, including any restrictions or modifications on which approval is conditioned.

In the event the Geo-Institute's revenues exceed its expenditures, the Society shall create a general reserve fund therefor, and the Geo-Institute shall control this reserve and may use funds from this reserve for programs and activities of the Geo-Institute.

Monies from the ISSMGE Trust Fund used for expenditures, which are not consistent with the purpose of the fund as described in Article VIII, Paragraph 6, shall be returned to the ISSMGE Trust Fund prior to any deposit of surplus in a reserve fund.

10.5 *Records*. The books and accounts of the Geo-Institute shall be kept by the Director of the Geo-Institute, who shall be directly responsible to the Geo-Institute Board.

10.6 *Reporting*. At the close of each fiscal year, the Geo-Institute Director shall provide a preliminary statement of the affairs of the Geo-Institute, including, but not limited to, a balance sheet and fiscal statement of operations for the preceding year, which shall be submitted to the Geo-Institute Board and to the Society's Board of Direction within sixty (60) days from the close of the fiscal year.

10.7 *Audit*. The Geo-Institute Director shall procure annually an external financial review of the books and records of the Geo-Institute. Such audit may be performed in conjunction with the Society's annual audit. The books and records shall be made available to the Society's Treasurer or designee on reasonable notice.

#### **Article 11. Management**

11.0 Committees. The Board may, at its discretion, establish and discharge organizational elements such as divisions, councils, standing and ad-hoc task committees as necessary or desirable to conduct the affairs of the Geo-Institute. Establishment of any such organizational element (including committees) shall be by means of a charter or charge, which shall define the mission of the element and its term of the charter. These elements will report to the Board of Governors through a hierarchy established by the Board. Appointments to councils as well as appointments of Board-level committee chairs are made by the Board of Governors. All other appointments to Board-level committees may be delegated by the Board to the individual committee chairs, but such appointments must be made with the consent of the Board.

The Board may, at its discretion, appoint task forces or ad hoc committees. Such task forces and committees shall be established with defined purposes and determined duration of appointment as specified by the Board. In addition, the Board may delegate to its committees (or other organizational elements) the authority to establish and appoint subcommittees or ad-hoc task committees.

Committee chairs shall return a committee's tangible property and records, and all records relating to any intangible property and work product of the committee to the Geo-Institute when discharged, or when requested by the Board. Such materials, and any intangible property including work products of the committee belong to the Geo-Institute. All committees (including any subcommittees), and all special delegates and representatives unless otherwise directed by the Board, shall be governed by this provision.

- 11.1 *Rules*. The Board may establish rules that are consistent with these Bylaws for the policies, procedures, and programs of the Geo-Institute. Committees and task forces of the Geo-Institute may be directed to establish written operating policies and procedures, which shall require approval of the Board for adoption and amendment.
- 11.2 Parliamentary Authority. All membership meetings of the Geo-Institute and meetings of its Board shall be conducted according to the rules contained in Robert's Rules of
- 11.3 *Dissemination of Information*. Electronic communications shall be utilized to encourage and ease the exchange of ideas and methods among Geo-Institute members.
- 11.4 *Relationship to the Society*. Fees for services provided to the Geo-Institute by the Society shall be set by written agreement between the Geo-Institute and the Society.

The Society shall have the right of first refusal on the provision of services for the delivery of Geo-Institute products and services. In the event that the Institute develops a product or service on its own, it must meet Society standards for quality.

Property and Records of the Geo-Institute shall belong to the Society, except for the ISSMGE Trust Fund.

The Geo-Institute may issue its own statements of policy but must identify them as such. Any amplification, interpretation, or application of Society policies other than by the Society Board of Direction must be clearly identified as the views of the component so engaged and not of the Society. No action shall be taken by the Geo-Institute which

may be deemed to express an attitude or action of the Society, but resolutions or recommendations may be addressed to the Society Board of Direction for consideration or approval and promulgation.

The Geo-Institute may conduct conferences and conventions by itself or acting in conjunction with other units of ASCE or other affiliated organizations subject to the right of first refusal in the second paragraph of this Section.

11.5 *Publications*. Publications of the Geo-Institute shall be consistent with Society policies except as provided in written agreements that may exist between the Society and the Geo-Institute.

The Geo-Institute may develop journals, magazines, Manuals of Practice, and Standards by itself or in conjunction with the Society or other organizations.

Members of the Geo-Institute who are not members of the Society shall be entitled to receive publications of the Geo-Institute at Society member rates and other Society publications at rates determined by the Society and the Geo-Institute Board.

11.6 *Indemnification*. Governors, officers, the Geo-Institute Director, and Geo-Institute staff and agents, in their respective capacities as such, each shall receive the same indemnification by the Society as do the Society's Directors, officers, employees, and agents.

#### **Article 12. Dissolution**

12.0 *Dissolution*. At any duly constituted meeting of the Board of Governors by a two-thirds (2/3) majority of those present and voting, the Geo-Institute's Board of Governors may vote to recommend dissolution by the Society's Board of Direction, provided that a written notice of this proposed action shall have been given at a previous meeting of the Board, and provided further that the proposed amendment shall have been published, together with an announcement soliciting membership comments, in an Geo-Institute, Society, or third party publication that normally reaches the entire membership of the Geo-Institute, or sent to the membership by other means.

#### **Article 13. Amendment**

13.0 *Bylaws*. The Geo-Institute Bylaws may be amended at a duly constituted meeting of the Board of Governors, a quorum being present, by a two-thirds (2/3) majority of those present and voting, provided that a written notice of such proposed amendment shall have been given at a previous meeting of the Board.

The Bylaws may also be amended upon receipt of the written consent of the majority of the Regular Members of the Geo-Institute in good standing.

No amendment to these Bylaws becomes effective until it is approved by the Society's Board of Direction.

## **GEO-INSTITUTE COMMITTEES**

Purpose. The core purpose of the Geo-Institute is to advance the geo-engineering community. The core values of the Geo-Institute are:

Responsiveness to members' needs Ethical behavior Service to the profession and society

Innovation
Technical excellence

Inclusiveness

The scope of the Geo-Institute shall encompass the geo-science, geo-engineering, and geotechnology related to improving the built environment, mitigating natural hazards, and constructing engineered facilities.

## **Board Of Governors (GEO)**

Youssef M A Hashash, Ph.D., P.E., F.ASCE, *President* 

Beth A Gross, Ph.D., P.E., D.GE, F.ASCE, Vice President

Garry Haden Gregory, Ph.D., P.E., D.GE, M.ASCE, Past President

Charles W Black, Jr., P.E., M.ASCE, Governor

James G Collin, Ph.D., P.E., D.GE, F.ASCE, Governor Robert B Gilbert, Ph.D., P.E., D.GE, M.ASCE, *Governor* 

Aspasia Sissy Nikolaou, Ph.D., P.E., F.ASCE, Governor

Bradley E Keelor, Secretary

Patrick J Fox, Ph.D., P.E., D.GE, F.ASCE, *Treasurer* Robert D Holtz, Ph.D., P.E., D.GE, Dist.M.ASCE

Tatiana Vlasova, Aff.M.ASCE

## **Awards Committee**

To recommend recipients for Geo-Institute and Society awards to the G-I Board of Governors.

Kenneth Lawrence Fishman, Ph.D., P.E., M.ASCE, *Chair* 

Beth A Gross, Ph.D., P.E., D.GE, F.ASCE Steven L. Kramer, Ph.D., P.E., M.ASCE

Daniel E Pradel, Ph.D., P.E., D.GE, F.ASCE

Marika C Santagata, Ph.D., M.ASCE Timothy Carl Siegel, P.E., D.GE, M.ASCE Christopher W Swan, Sc.D, A.M.ASCE Tatiana Vlasova, Aff.M.ASCE

#### **Geo-Congress Organizing Committee**

William M Camp, III, P.E., D.GE, M.ASCE, Chair

Jeremy Brian Anderson, Ph.D., P.E., M.ASCE

Thomas Brandon, Ph.D., P.E., M.ASCE

Allen Cadden, P.E., D.GE, F.ASCE

C. Yoga Chandran, Ph.D., G.E., P.E., M.ASCE

Helen E Cook, MBA, A.M.ASCE

Richard J. Finno, Ph.D., P.E., D.GE, M.ASCE

Garry Haden Gregory, Ph.D., P.E., D.GE, M.ASCE

James D Hussin, P.E., M.ASCE

Steven L. Kramer, Ph.D., P.E., M.ASCE Gerald A Miller, Ph.D., P.E., M.ASCE Menzer Pehlivan, Ph.D., P.E., M.ASCE Robert Thompson, III, P.E., D.GE, M.ASCE Richard J Valentine, P.E., M.ASCE William Andrew Kitch, P.E., M.ASCE,

Representative

Damian R Siebert, P.E., M.ASCE, Representative

## **Continuing Education Committee**

Beena Ajmera, EIT, A.M.ASCE

John Joseph Bowders, Jr., Ph.D., P.E., M.ASCE

Barry Christopher, P.E., M.ASCE

D Vaughan Griffiths, Ph.D., D.GE, P.E., F.ASCE

 $Beth\ A\ Gross,\ Ph.D.,\ P.E.,\ D.GE,\ F.ASCE$ 

Beth A Gross, Ph.D., P.E., D.GE, F.ASCE

Magued G Iskander, P.E., F.ASCE

Joseph P Laird, P.E., M.ASCE

Dakshana Murthy, P.E., D.GE, M.ASCE

Silas Craig Nichols, M.ASCE

Coimbatore K Satyapriya, P.E., D.GE, F.ASCE

Diane Swecker, EIT, A.M.ASCE

Satya N Varadhi, Ph.D., P.E., D.GE, M.ASCE

John E Durrant, P.E., F.ASCE, Observer

Donna M Gumenuk, P.E., Aff.M.ASCE, ASCE Staff

Contact

## **Geo-Legislative Committee**

To coordinate the Geo-Institute's activities in legislative and policy issues.

Jason Brent Stoops, P.E., M.ASCE, Chair

Zachary Fred Carr, P.E., M.ASCE

C. Yoga Chandran, Ph.D., G.E., P.E., M.ASCE

John W. France, P.E., D.GE, D.WRE, M.ASCE

Kancheepuram N. Gunalan, Ph.D., P.E., D.GE,

F.ASCE

Arthur G Hoffmann, Jr., P.E., D.GE, M.ASCE

David Leo O'Sadnick, P.E., M.ASCE Jason Brent Stoops, P.E., M.ASCE

Nathan Thompson, P.E., M.ASCE

## **International Activities Council**

To consider policies and activities related to the international interests of the Institute.

James Lewis Hanson, Ph.D., P.E., M.ASCE, Chair

David Espinoza, Ph.D., P.E., M.ASCE, Vice-Chair

Joseph Wartman, Ph.D., P.E., M.ASCE, Secretary

Jose E Andrade, Ph.D., M.ASCE

Youssef M A Hashash, Ph.D., P.E., F.ASCE

Robert D Holtz, Ph.D., P.E., D.GE, Dist.M.ASCE

Jayhyun Kwon, P.E., M.ASCE

Vernon R. Schaefer, Ph.D., P.E., M.ASCE

Dimitrios Zekkos, Ph.D., P.E., M.ASCE

Jorge G Zornberg, Ph.D., P.E., F.ASCE

#### **Local Involvement Committee**

To increase local involvement in the Geo-Institute

Daniel Brian Mahrt, P.E., M.ASCE, Chair

Kartk Mohan Atyam, P.E., M.ASCE

James G Collin, Ph.D., P.E., D.GE, F.ASCE

Moustafa Abdel-Hamid Gouda, P.E., D.GE, F.ASCE

Ryan B Maw, P.E., M.ASCE Damian R Siebert, P.E., M.ASCE

Joseph A Waxse, P.E., D.GE, G.E., M.ASCE

#### **Nominations & Elections Committee**

To solicit from the G-I membership nominees for the office of G-I governor, and to oversee the process of electing new governors to the G-I board in the event of a contested election.

Youssef M A Hashash, Ph.D., P.E., F.ASCE, Chair

#### **Organizational Member Council**

To represent the interests of the Organizational Members of the Geo-Institute (G-I), with the ultimate goal of enhancing the benefits of this special membership category. The OMC seeks ways to increase the value of the Organizational Membership by recognizing the needs of the OM firms, identifying various activities or products that address those needs, and working with the G-I staff and leadership to implement the resulting programs.

Stanley R Boyle, P.E., M.ASCE, Chair

Tim Grant Abrams, P.E., M.ASCE

Curt R Basnett, P.E., M.ASCE

Ronald David Boyer

Donald Edward Gerken, P.E., M.ASCE

Beth A Gross, Ph.D., P.E., D.GE, F.ASCE

Bradley E Keelor

Ara G Mouradian, P.E., M.ASCE

Robert Matthew Saunders, P.E., M.ASCE

## **Outreach And Engagement**

To develop a robust program and process to engage the full breadth of our members within the Institute that provides leadership and raises awareness of the value of our diverse membership.

Menzer Pehlivan, Ph.D., P.E., M.ASCE, Chair

#### **Past Presidents**

Craig Herbert Benson, Ph.D., P.E., D.GE, NAE, F.ASCE

Allen Cadden, P.E., D.GE, F.ASCE

William M Camp, III, P.E., D.GE, M.ASCE Philip G. King, P.E., D.GE, F.ASCE

Kord J Wissmann, Ph.D., P.E., D.GE, M.ASCE

## **Regional Conference Committee**

To facilitate the creation, planning, and implementation of regional geotechnical conferences that are of value to the Geo-Institute membership.

Damian R Siebert, P.E., M.ASCE, Chair

Roger A Failmezger, D.GE, P.E., F.ASCE,

Vice-Chair

C. Yoga Chandran, Ph.D., G.E., P.E., M.ASCE James G Collin, Ph.D., P.E., D.GE, F.ASCE

Jerome J Mc Fadden, Jr., P.E., M.ASCE

Frances Miller, P.E., M.ASCE

Matthew Daniel Riegel, P.E., D.GE, M.ASCE

Joseph Waxse

## **Student Participation Committee**

William Andrew Kitch, P.E., M.ASCE, Chair Binod Tiwari, P.E., M.ASCE, Secretary Aaron Scott Budge, P.E., M.ASCE, Treasurer Richard Aaron Coffman, Ph.D., P.E., L.S., M.ASCE Patrick J Fox, Ph.D., P.E., D.GE, F.ASCE

Kevin William Franke, P.E., M.ASCE William Andrew Kitch, P.E., M.ASCE

Michael Patrick McGuire, Ph.D., P.E., M.ASCE Scott Michael Merry, Ph.D., P.E., F.ASCE Peter G Nicholson, Ph.D., P.E., D.GE, F.ASCE Jennifer Elizabeth Nicks, P.E., M.ASCE Eric John Steward, P.E., M.ASCE Binod Tiwari, P.E., M.ASCE

#### **Technical Publications Committee**

To develop goals and guidelines for improving and coordinating G-I and G-I related publications.

James L Withiam, Ph.D., P.E., D.GE, M.ASCE, Chair

Kenneth Lawrence Fishman, Ph.D., P.E., M.ASCE

Patrick J Fox, Ph.D., P.E., D.GE, F.ASCE Patrick J Fox, Ph.D., P.E., D.GE, F.ASCE

Roman D Hryciw, Ph.D., M.ASCE

Magued G Iskander, P.E., F.ASCE

Tatiana Vlasova, Aff.M.ASCE

W. Allen Marr, Jr., Ph.D., P.E., D.GE, NAE, F.ASCE

Diane Swecker, EIT, A.M.ASCE

Musharraf M Zaman, Ph.D., F.ASCE

## GEOSTRATA Editorial Board

To administer the review, editing, and approval for publication of articles in Geo-Strata Magazine.

Michael Patrick McGuire, Ph.D., P.E., M.ASCE,

Mary Catherine Nodine, P.E., M.ASCE, Editor Mark Kevin Seel, P.E., M.ASCE, Editor

James L Withiam, Ph.D., P.E., D.GE, M.ASCE,

James Tanner Blackburn, Ph.D., P.E., M.ASCE R. Jeffrey Dunn, Ph.D., P.E., D.GE, G.E., M.ASCE

Kenneth Lawrence Fishman, Ph.D., P.E., M.ASCE

Brian Andrew Hubel, P.E., G.E., M.ASCE Peter G Nicholson, Ph.D., P.E., D.GE, F.ASCE

International Journal of Geomechanics Editorial Board

Musharraf M Zaman, Ph.D., F.ASCE, *Editor-in-Chief*Trudy Kay Buehler, P.E., M.ASCE, *Associate Editor*Scott Michael Olson, Ph.D., P.E., M.ASCE, *Associate Editor* 

S. Akutagawa

Gandluri Lakshminarasimha Sivakumar Babu, Ph.D., F.ASCE

Prabir Kumar Basudhar, A.M.ASCE Klaus-Jurgen Bathe, M.ASCE Richard Bathurst, P.Eng, M.ASCE

Zdenek P Bazant, Ph.D., S.E., NAE, NAS, F.EMI, Hon.M.ASCE

Giovanna Biscontin, Ph.D., M.ASCE

John Phillip Carter, M.ASCE John Phillip Carter, M.ASCE

Dar Hao Chen, Ph.D., P.E.

Wai Fah Chen, Ph.D., P.E., NAE, Hon.M.ASCE

Deepankar Choudhury, Ph.D., M.ASCE

Yean Khow Chow, P.E.

Chandrakant S Desai, Ph.D., P.E., Dist.M.ASCE

Marta Dolezalova

Derek Elsworth, Ph.D., P.E., M.ASCE

Conrad W. Felice

Kenneth Lawrence Fishman, Ph.D., P.E., M.ASCE

Patrick J Fox, Ph.D., P.E., D.GE, F.ASCE

Giuseppe Gambolati Louis Ge, M.ASCE Antonio Gens

Giancarlo Gioda, A.M.ASCE Jie Han, Ph.D., P.E., F.ASCE Tomasz Antoni Hueckel William K Petersen, P.E., M.ASCE

Christian Bernard Woods, P.E., D.GE, G.E., M.ASCE

Yu-Yong Jiao

Dinesh R Katti, Ph.D., F.EMI, M.ASCE

Rolf Katzenbach

Poul V Lade, Ph.D., M.ASCE

Balasingam Muhunthan, P.E., F.ASCE

Yacoub Mohammad Najjar, Ph.D., P.E., M.ASCE

Catherine O'Sullivan, C.Eng

FUSAO OKA

Panos Papanastasiou

W. G. Pariseau

Dayakar Penumadu, Ph.D., M.ASCE

Michael Edward Plesha, Ph.D.

D. Potts

Jean H Prevost, Ph.D., M.ASCE

MARK RANDOLPH Miguel P Romo, M.ASCE

Ronald Kerry Rowe, Ph.D., P.Eng, NAE, F.ASCE Rodrigo Salgado, Ph.D., P.E., D.GE, F.ASCE Charles Warren Schwartz, Ph.D., M.ASCE

HELMUT SCHWEIGER

Antony Patrick S Selvadurai, Ph.D., P.E., M.ASCE

Jean-Francois Semblat

Devendra Narain Singh, F.ASCE

Hema Jayalath Siriwardane, P.E., M.ASCE

David Smith

Erol Tutumluer, Ph.D., M.ASCE

KEIZO UGAI

Jianhua Yin, Ph.D., P.Eng Jianhua Yin, Ph.D., P.Eng

Hai-Sui Yu

## Journal Of Geotech. & Geoenvt'l Engineering Editorial Board

Mohammed Awad Gabr, Ph.D., D.GE, P.E., F.ASCE, *Editor-in-Chief* 

D Vaughan Griffiths, Ph.D., D.GE, P.E., F.ASCE, *Editor* 

John Scott McCartney, Ph.D., P.E., M.ASCE, *Editor* Rodrigo Salgado, Ph.D., P.E., D.GE, F.ASCE, *Editor* Timothy D Stark, Ph.D., P.E., D.GE, F.ASCE, *Editor* Pedro Arduino, M.ASCE, *Associate Editor* 

Domniki Asimaki, Ph.D., A.M.ASCE, Associate Editor

Adda Maria Athanasopoulos-Zekkos, A.M.ASCE, Associate Editor

Charles P Aubeny, Ph.D., P.E., F.ASCE, Associate Editor

Ahmet Halit Aydilek, Ph.D., M.ASCE, *Associate Editor* 

Dipanjan Basu, Ph.D., C.Eng, M.ASCE, *Associate Editor* 

Giovanna Biscontin, Ph.D., M.ASCE, Associate Editor

Abdelmalek Bouazza, Associate Editor

Scott Joseph Brandenberg, Ph.D., P.E., M.ASCE, Associate Editor

Trudy Kay Buehler, P.E., M.ASCE, *Associate Editor* Giuseppe Buscarnera, Ph.D., Aff.M.ASCE, *Associate Editor* 

Mark Cassidy, Associate Editor

Nilo Cesar Consoli, Associate Editor

Jason T DeJong, Ph.D., M.ASCE, *Associate Editor* James Michael Duncan, P.E., D.GE, Dist.M.ASCE, *Associate Editor* 

Derek Elsworth, Ph.D., P.E., M.ASCE, Associate Editor

Marte Sta Maria Gutierrez, A.M.ASCE, *Associate Editor* 

Jie Han, Ph.D., P.E., F.ASCE, Associate Editor Buddhima Nalin Indraratna, F.ASCE, Associate Editor

Mark Jaksa, Associate Editor

Assaf Klar, Ph.D., M.ASCE, *Associate Editor* Robert Y Liang, Ph.D., P.E., F.ASCE, *Associate Editor* 

Garland E Likins, P.E., M.ASCE, Associate Editor Hoe I Peter Ling, Ph.D., M.ASCE, Associate Editor Alan Lutenegger, Ph.D., P.E., F.ASCE, Associate Editor

Andrei Lyamin, Associate Editor Roger W Meier, M.ASCE, Associate Editor Robb Eric S Moss, Ph.D., P.E., F.ASCE, Associate

Catherine O'Sullivan, C.Eng, *Associate Editor* Scott Michael Olson, Ph.D., P.E., M.ASCE, *Associate Editor*  Daniel E Pradel, Ph.D., P.E., D.GE, F.ASCE, Associate Editor

Monica Prezzi, A.M.ASCE, Associate Editor Anand Jagadeesh Puppala, Ph.D., P.E., D.GE, F.ASCE, Associate Editor

Alexander Puzrin, Associate Editor

Tong Qiu, Ph.D., P.E., M.ASCE, *Associate Editor* John David Rice, Ph.D., A.M.ASCE, *Associate Editor* Adrian Rodriguez-Marek, Ph.D., M.ASCE, *Associate Editor* 

Marcelo Javier Sanchez, Ph.D., Aff.M.ASCE, Associate Editor

Thomas Clair Sheahan, P.E., F.ASCE, Associate Editor

Abdul-Hamid Soubra, M.ASCE, *Associate Editor* Armin Wilhelm Stuedlein, P.E., M.ASCE, *Associate Editor* 

Muhannad Taher Suleiman, A.M.ASCE, Associate Editor

Binod Tiwari, P.E., M.ASCE, Associate Editor Kohji Tokimatsu, D.Eng., M.ASCE, Associate Editor Luis E Vallejo, A.M.ASCE, Associate Editor Dimitrios Zekkos, Ph.D., P.E., M.ASCE, Associate Editor

Lianyang Zhang, Ph.D., P.E., M.ASCE, Associate Editor

Limin Zhang, Ph.D., F.ASCE, Associate Editor Kelly Anderson John T Christian, Ph.D., D.GE, P.E., NAE, Dist.M.ASCE Patrick J Fox, Ph.D., P.E., D.GE, F.ASCE

## Codes & Standards Council

To identify the need for codes, standards, and guidance documents pertaining to the practice of geotechnology, and to prepare and/or cooperate with other professional and corporate entities in preparing appropriate codes, standards, and guidelines.

Kenneth R Bell, Ph.D., P.E., D.GE, F.ASCE, *Chair* Lawrence F Johnsen, P.E., D.GE, M.ASCE, *Secretary* Kristi Kelty Bumpas, P.E., M.ASCE C. Yoga Chandran, Ph.D., G.E., P.E., M.ASCE Garry Haden Gregory, Ph.D., P.E., D.GE, M.ASCE Theodore R Maynard, P.E., M.ASCE

Krishna R. Reddy, Ph.D., P.E., D.GE, ENV SP, F.ASCE

Stephen R Richards, P.E., M.ASCE
Diane Swecker, EIT, A.M.ASCE
Robert W Thompson, P.E., D.GE, F.ASCE
Mark H Wayne, Ph.D., P.E., M.ASCE
Warren Kent Wray, Ph.D., P.E., D.GE, F.ASCE

#### **Compaction Grouting Guideline**

To develop a consensus guide for compaction grouting, focused specifically on applications where compaction of the soil is a primary element of the foundation improvement.

Samson Woodrow Bandimere, Aff.M.ASCE, Chair

John Baldwin

Michael Joseph Byle, P.E., D.GE, F.ASCE

Allen Cadden, P.E., D.GE, F.ASCE

Pierre Choquet, A.M.ASCE

Jerry Anthony DiMaggio, D.GE, P.E., M.ASCE

Eric Rolf Drooff, M.ASCE

Curtis M Fitzgerald, P.E., M.ASCE

Lawrence Burwell Gruner, Aff.M.ASCE

Joe Harris, Aff.M.ASCE

Michael G Jefferies, P.E.

Lawrence F Johnsen, P.E., D.GE, M.ASCE

Daniel Scott Kieffer, Ph.D., P.E., M.ASCE

Steve C Maranowski, A.M.ASCE Michael J Miluski, P.E., M.ASCE

Dawn Alison Shuttle, Ph.D., M.ASCE

Cumaraswamy Vipulanandan, Ph.D., P.E., M.ASCE

James Warner, F.ASCE

Peter T Yen

Jonathan Carl Esslinger, P.E., F.ASCE, ASCE Staff

Contact

James M Neckel, Aff.M.ASCE, ASCE Staff Contact

James M Neckel, Aff.M.ASCE, ASCE Staff Contact

#### **DIGGS Standard**

Robert Charles Bachus, P.E., D.GE, M.ASCE, Chair

Scott Taylor Anderson, P.E., M.ASCE

Robert Charles Bachus, P.E., D.GE, M.ASCE

Allen Cadden, P.E., D.GE, F.ASCE Salvatore Caronna, L.S., Aff.M.ASCE

Roger Chandler

Scott Lowrey Deaton, A.M.ASCE

Marc I Hoit, Ph.D., F.ASCE, F.SEI

Khalid T Mohamed-Elnour, P.E., M.ASCE

Peter A Narsavage, P.E., M.ASCE

Gene Vincent Roe, Ph.D., P.E., R.L.S., L.S., M.ASCE

Alan Keith Turner, P.Eng, M.ASCE

Loren L Turner, P.E. Matthew K. Waterman

Jonathan Carl Esslinger, P.E., F.ASCE, ASCE Staff

Contact

## **Design of Residential Structures on Expansive Soil Standards**

To develop standards for design of Residential Structures on Expansive Soils.

Warren Kent Wray, Ph.D., P.E., D.GE, F.ASCE,

Chair

Alan L Kropp, P.E., M.ASCE, *Co-Chair* Robert W Thompson, P.E., D.GE, F.ASCE,

Vice-Chair

Richard Martin Bennett, Ph.D., P.E., M.ASCE,

Secretary

Donald E Bobbitt, P.E., F.ASCE

David Clare Breiholz, P.E., F.ASCE

Jean-Louis Briaud, Ph.D., P.E., D.GE, Dist.M.ASCE

John Thomas Bryant, Ph.D., P.E., P.G., D.GE,

M.ASCE

Manuel Antonio Diaz, Ph.D., P.E., M.ASCE

Ram Autar Goel, P.E., F.ASCE

Donald George Illingworth, P.E.

Arthur Shofner Koenig, P.E., M.ASCE

Edward Merrill Laatsch, P.E., M.ASCE

Stephen Scot Litke, Hon.D.GE, Aff.M.ASCE

Robert L Lytton, Ph.D., P.E., D.GE, F.ASCE

Britt Maxwell, P.E., M.ASCE

Robert G McKeen, P.E., D.GE, M.ASCE

Joseph J Messersmith, Jr., P.E., M.ASCE

Robert F Pierry, Jr., P.E., M.ASCE

Dean Robert Read, Jr., P.E., M.ASCE

Thomas R Thompson

W Tom Witherspoon, P.E., L.S., D.GE, M.ASCE

Jonathan Carl Esslinger, P.E., F.ASCE, ASCE Staff

Contact

## **Technical Coordination Council**

To integrate and coordinate all G-I technical activities, including technical committee activities and projects, specialty conferences, spoke conferences, and sessions. To develop committee organization and appropriate procedures for all technical committees.

Dimitrios Konstantakos, P.E., M.ASCE, *Chair*Victor Donald
Elizabeth Marie Dwyre, P.E., D.GE, M.ASCE
Jeffrey Clinton Evans, Ph.D., P.E., F.ASCE
Beth A Gross, Ph.D., P.E., D.GE, F.ASCE

Nick William Hudyma, P.E., M.ASCE Steven L. Kramer, Ph.D., P.E., M.ASCE Peter G Nicholson, Ph.D., P.E., D.GE, F.ASCE Anand Jagadeesh Puppala, Ph.D., P.E., D.GE, F.ASCE

## **Geo-Institute Technical Committees**

To (a) organize major technical events such as specialty conferences for the advancement of geotechnology through the exchange of new research findings and practical experience; (b) organize major workshops and short courses on more focused topics of interest; (c) organize technical sessions for the specialty conferences of other groups and annual convention; (d) develop state-of-the-art/state-of-the-practice publications on issues related to geotechnology; (e) develop projects/activities that bring together the expertise from the G-I technical committees, in areas where such collaboration is essential or may lead to innovations; (f) identify and promote innovations and emerging technologies: (g) promote the work of the members and the G-I in the general public through articles in the national press; (h) provide expert opinions and respond to emergencies; and (i) partner with liaison organizations.

## **Computational Geotechnics**

Jose E Andrade, Ph.D., M.ASCE, *Chair*Usama Samir El Shamy, P.E., M.ASCE, *Vice-Chair*Dean E Harris, P.E., M.ASCE, *Secretary*Sherif Lotfy Abdel Motaleb Abdelaziz, EIT,

A.M.ASCE

Ahmad Alhasan, A.M.ASCE

Scott Taylor Anderson, P.E., M.ASCE Jose E Andrade, Ph.D., M.ASCE Eng-Chew Ang, P.E., M.ASCE

Haydar Arslan

Chloe Arson, Aff.M.ASCE

Dipanjan Basu, Ph.D., C.Eng, M.ASCE Jomaa Ben-Hassine, P.E., P.Eng, M.ASCE Giuseppe Buscarnera, Ph.D., Aff.M.ASCE Salvatore Caronna, L.S., Aff.M.ASCE

John B Case, P.E., M.ASCE Jan Cermak, P.E., M.ASCE

Qiushi Chen, Ph.D., EIT, A.M.ASCE Michael Lach Coryell, P.E., M.ASCE Michelle Deng, EIT, A.M.ASCE

Elizabeth Marie Dwyre, P.E., D.GE, M.ASCE

Alan J Esser, P.E., D.GE, M.ASCE T. Matthew Evans, Ph.D., A.M.ASCE Arvin Farid, Ph.D., P.E., M.ASCE Murray D Fredlund, Ph.D., P.Eng

Yuan Guo, S.M.ASCE Jean Habimana, P.E.

Dean E Harris, P.E., M.ASCE Yazen Khasawneh, P.E., M.ASCE Golam Kibria, P.E., A.M.ASCE Seung Jae Lee, Aff.M.ASCE Keng-Wit Lim, P.E., M.ASCE Xiaobin Lin, P.E., M.ASCE

Xilin Lu, A.M.ASCE

Ronaldo Luna, Ph.D., P.E., F.ASCE

Kalehiwot Nega Manahiloh, Ph.D., P.E., M.ASCE

Marta Miletic

Nicolas Oettle, Ph.D., P.E., M.ASCE Gyaneswor Pokharel, Ph.D., P.E., M.ASCE Daniel E Pradel, Ph.D., P.E., D.GE, F.ASCE Mohammad Reza Razavi, C.Eng, A.M.ASCE Rodrigo Salgado, Ph.D., P.E., D.GE, F.ASCE

Sunil Sharma, Ph.D., P.E., M.ASCE

Timothy Carl Siegel, P.E., D.GE, M.ASCE Steve Waiching Sun, Ph.D., M.ASCE Diane Swecker, EIT, A.M.ASCE John P Tinucci, P.E., M.ASCE Jay Xingran Wang, P.E., M.ASCE

Shugang Wang, Ph.D., A.M.ASCE Lei Wei, Ph.D., P.E., M.ASCE Moussa Wone, P.E., M.ASCE Stephen G Wright, Ph.D., P.E., M.ASCE Xiaoming Yang, P.E., M.ASCE Xiong Yu, Ph.D., P.E., F.ASCE

## **Deep Foundations**

Muhannad Taher Suleiman, A.M.ASCE, *Chair* Robert Thompson, III, P.E., D.GE, M.ASCE, *Secretary* 

Murad Yusuf Abufarsakh, Ph.D., P.E., M.ASCE Jeremy Brian Anderson, Ph.D., P.E., M.ASCE Clyde N Baker, Jr., P.E., NAE, Hon.M.ASCE

Curt R Basnett, P.E., M.ASCE Thomas Bonnie, P.E., M.ASCE

Jean-Louis Briaud, Ph.D., P.E., D.GE, Dist.M.ASCE

Dan A Brown, Ph.D., P.E., D.GE, M.ASCE William M Camp, III, P.E., D.GE, M.ASCE Raymond John Castelli, P.E., M.ASCE Joseph Thomas Coe, Jr., EIT, A.M.ASCE Jerry Anthony DiMaggio, D.GE, P.E., M.ASCE

Mario Dinicola, A.M.ASCE

Vishnu Ainsley Diyaljee, P.Eng, F.ASCE

Theresa Engler

Robert Nicholas Faulhaber, P.E., M.ASCE

Mohammed Awad Gabr, Ph.D., D.GE, P.E., F.ASCE

Sarah Lyn Gassman, P.E., M.ASCE Donald Edward Gerken, P.E., M.ASCE

George G. Goble, P.E.

Stevan A. Hall

Bernard H. Hertlein, M.ASCE Mohamad H Hussein, P.E., M.ASCE Said Iravani, Ph.D., P.E., F.ASCE Magued G Iskander, P.E., F.ASCE

Peter Mike Kandaris, P.E.

Van Eric Komurka, P.E., D.GE, F.ASCE Dimitrios Konstantakos, P.E., M.ASCE Debra F Laefer, Ph.D., EI, M.ASCE Mary Ellen C. Large, P.E., D.GE, M.ASCE

Tianfei Liao, P.E.

Xiaobin Lin, P.E., M.ASCE

Stephen Scot Litke, Hon.D.GE, Aff.M.ASCE Sanjeev Malhotra, P.E., G.E., D.GE, F.ASCE Antonio Marinucci, MBA, P.E., Ph.D., M.ASCE

Nasser Massoudi, Ph.D., P.E., M.ASCE Ross T McGillivray, P.E., M.ASCE

Mohamed M. Mekkawy, Ph.D., P.E., M.ASCE Rozbeh Moghaddam, Ph.D., P.E., M.ASCE

Michael D. Moore, Aff.M.ASCE Ramin Motamed, Ph.D., P.E., M.ASCE Willie Morgan NeSmith, P.E., M.ASCE Kam Weng Ng, Ph.D., P.E., M.ASCE James William Niehoff, P.E., M.ASCE

Samuel G Paikowsky, M.ASCE

Anand Jagadeesh Puppala, Ph.D., P.E., D.GE, F.ASCE

Morgan Race, Ph.D., P.E., M.ASCE

Seyyed Mehdi Radeghi Mehrjou, A.M.ASCE

Frederick C Rhyner, P.E., M.ASCE

Matthew Daniel Riegel, P.E., D.GE, M.ASCE

Gokhan Saygili, P.E., M.ASCE Hoyoung Seo, D.Eng., P.E., M.ASCE

Elizabeth M Smith, P.E., G.E., D.GE, M.ASCE

Sam Sternberg, III, P.E., M.ASCE Eric John Steward, P.E., M.ASCE Frank C Townsend, Ph.D., P.E., F.ASCE Siavash Zamiran, MSc, M.ASCE

Luis O Garcia, P.E., M.ASCE

#### **Earth Retaining Structures**

To support ASCE and the Geo-Institute and provide the most useful information available to the Earth Retaining Structures Community.

Anne Lemnitzer, A.M.ASCE, *Chair* Glen R Andersen, A.M.ASCE, *Vice-Chair* Joel Dellaria, P.E., S.E., M.ASCE, *Secretary* 

Nidal Abi Saab, P.E., A.M.ASCE Ghassan Akrouch, A.M.ASCE

Robert Alperstein, P.E., D.GE, M.ASCE

Daniel Enrique Alzamora, P.E., M.ASCE

Luis G Arboleda, Ing., M.ASCE

Jonathan Kevin Bennett, P.E., D.GE, M.ASCE James Tanner Blackburn, Ph.D., P.E., M.ASCE

David M Borger, A.M.ASCE

L Sebastian Bryson, Ph.D., P.E., M.ASCE

Kevin W Cargill, P.E., M.ASCE Massimo Ciarla, A.M.ASCE

Hubert J Deaton, III, P.E., Hon.D.GE, M.ASCE

Victor Randall Donald, P.E., M.ASCE

Elizabeth Dwyer

Richard J. Finno, Ph.D., P.E., D.GE, M.ASCE Lawrence A Hansen, Ph.D., P.E., M.ASCE Fransiscus Suhanto Hardianto, P.E., G.E., D.GE,

F.ASCE

Youssef M A Hashash, Ph.D., P.E., F.ASCE

Priyantha W Jayawickrama, M.ASCE Lucy C Jen, Ph.D., P.E., M.ASCE Daniel Kennedy, P.E., M.ASCE Daniel Kennedy, P.E., M.ASCE Sara Khoshnevisan, Ph.D., A.M.ASCE

Dimitrios Konstantakos, P.E., M.ASCE

Arvind Sadashiv Kumbhojkar, Ph.D., P.E., F.ASCE

Walter G Kutschke, P.E., M.ASCE

Debra F Laefer, Ph.D., EI, M.ASCE Scott J Ludlow, P.E., M.ASCE Ashley Macmillan, P.E., M.ASCE

James A McKelvey, III, P.E., D.GE, F.ASCE Rozbeh Moghaddam, Ph.D., P.E., M.ASCE

Miguel Angel Pando, P.E., M.ASCE

Daniel E Pradel, Ph.D., P.E., D.GE, F.ASCE

Paul J Sabatini, P.E., D.GE, M.ASCE

Bryan Philip Sweeney, P.E., D.GE, M.ASCE

Burak F Tanyu, C.Eng, M.ASCE

Thomas Patrick Taylor, P.E., D.GE, M.ASCE Edward J Ulrich, P.E., D.GE, M.ASCE Richard J Valentine, P.E., M.ASCE Kimberly Anne Warren, A.M.ASCE David Edwin Weatherby, M.ASCE Andrew J Whittle, Ph.D., M.ASCE

John Raymond Wolosick, P.E., D.GE, F.ASCE

## **Earthquake Engineering and Soil Dynamics**

Adrian Rodriguez-Marek, Ph.D., M.ASCE, *Chair* Scott Joseph Brandenberg, Ph.D., P.E., M.ASCE, *Vice-Chair* 

Tong Qiu, Ph.D., P.E., M.ASCE, Secretary Tarek Hassen Abdoun, Ph.D., M.ASCE

Beena Ajmera, EIT, A.M.ASCE Zahra Amini, Ph.D., A.M.ASCE

Jeramy Curtis Ashlock, Ph.D., A.M.ASCE Domniki Asimaki, Ph.D., A.M.ASCE

Adda Maria Athanasopoulos-Zekkos, A.M.ASCE

Ross W Boulanger, Ph.D., P.E., F.ASCE Ashly Cabas Mijares, Ph.D., A.M.ASCE C. Yoga Chandran, Ph.D., G.E., P.E., M.ASCE

Deepankar Choudhury, Ph.D., M.ASCE Brady R. Cox, Ph.D., P.E., A.M.ASCE Shideh Dashti, Ph.D., A.M.ASCE

Craig A Davis, Ph.D., G.E., P.E., M.ASCE Haitham M. Dawood, EIT, Ph.D., A.M.ASCE

Mandar M Dewoolkar, P.E., M.ASCE Guillermo Diaz-Fanas, P.E., M.ASCE Jennifer L Donahue, P.E., M.ASCE Usama Samir El Shamy, P.E., M.ASCE Ahmed Waeil M Elgamal, Ph.D., M.ASCE

Ali Akbar Eliadorani, Ph.D., P.E., P.L.S., M.ASCE

Liam D Finn, P.E., M.ASCE

Kenneth Lawrence Fishman, Ph.D., P.E., M.ASCE

Kevin William Franke, P.E., M.ASCE

David Frost, Ph.D., P.E., F.ASCE Majid Ghayoomi, Ph.D., A.M.ASCE Russell A Green, Ph.D., P.E., M.ASCE Shawn Curtis Griffiths, A.M.ASCE

James Kaklamanos, Ph.D., EIT, A.M.ASCE

Michael Edward Kalinski, P.E.

Steven L. Kramer, Ph.D., P.E., M.ASCE

Madjid T Manzari

Neven Matasovic, Ph.D., F.ASCE Ryan B Maw, P.E., M.ASCE Jack Montgomery, EIT, A.M.ASCE Ramin Motamed, Ph.D., P.E., M.ASCE Aspasia Sissy Nikolaou, Ph.D., P.E., F.ASCE Scott Michael Olson, Ph.D., P.E., M.ASCE

Choon B Park, A.M.ASCE

Menzer Pehlivan, Ph.D., P.E., M.ASCE Juan M Pestana-Nascimento, P.E., M.ASCE Ellen M Rathje, Ph.D., P.E., F.ASCE Deepak Rayamajhi, Ph.D., A.M.ASCE Frederick C Rhyner, P.E., M.ASCE

Glenn Jay Rix, M.ASCE

Inthuorn Sasanakul, A.M.ASCE

Namasivayam (Sathi) Sathialingam, Ph.D., P.E., G.E.,

D.GE, F.ASCE

Gokhan Saygili, P.E., M.ASCE

Jonathan P Stewart, Ph.D., P.E., F.ASCE Mahdi Taiebat, Ph.D., P.Eng, M.ASCE

Judith C Wang, A.M.ASCE
Clint Miller Wood, A.M.ASCE
Richard D Woods, Ph.D., P.E., D.GE, NAE,
Dist.M.ASCE
Liping Yan, P.E., M.ASCE
Jun Yang, F.ASCE

Mishac K Yegian, P.E., F.ASCE Zia Zafir, G.E., P.E., M.ASCE Mourad Zeghal, Ph.D., A.M.ASCE Katerina Ziotopoulou, A.M.ASCE Xiangwu Zeng, M.ASCE

## **Embankments, Dams, and Slopes**

Timothy D Stark, Ph.D., P.E., D.GE, F.ASCE, *Chair* Richard Aaron Coffman, Ph.D., P.E., L.S., M.ASCE, *Secretary* 

Glen R Andersen, A.M.ASCE Scott A Anderson, P.E., M.ASCE

Adda Maria Athanasopoulos-Zekkos, A.M.ASCE

Thomas Brandon, Ph.D., P.E., M.ASCE Kristi Kelty Bumpas, P.E., M.ASCE Bernardo Castellanos, A.M.ASCE

Richard Aaron Coffman, Ph.D., P.E., L.S., M.ASCE James Michael Duncan, P.E., D.GE, Dist.M.ASCE

Jacob J Esterhuizen, P.E., M.ASCE

Garry Haden Gregory, Ph.D., P.E., D.GE, M.ASCE

Beth A Gross, Ph.D., P.E., D.GE, F.ASCE

Nejan Huvaj, A.M.ASCE

Navid Hussein Jafari, Ph.D., A.M.ASCE Mohammed G Kabir, Ph.D., P.E., M.ASCE

Sai Prasad Kakuturu, EIT, M.ASCE

Edward Kavazanjian, Jr., Ph.D., P.E., D.GE, NAE, F.ASCE

Richard L Kulesza, P.E., M.ASCE

Adam Jim Lobbestael, Ph.D., P.E., M.ASCE

J Erik Loehr, Ph.D., P.E., F.ASCE John McBean Lostumbo, P.E., M.ASCE Camilo Marulanda, Ph.D., M.ASCE

Karen Masterson, P.Eng Ryan B Maw, P.E., M.ASCE

Christopher Lee Meehan, Ph.D., P.E., F.ASCE

Radoslaw Lucas Michalowski, Ph.D., F.ASCE

Michael A Mooney, P.E., M.ASCE

Silas Craig Nichols, M.ASCE

Peter G Nicholson, Ph.D., P.E., D.GE, F.ASCE Peter G Nicholson, Ph.D., P.E., D.GE, F.ASCE Scott Michael Olson, Ph.D., P.E., M.ASCE Abdolreza Osouli, Ph.D., P.E., M.ASCE Miguel Angel Pando, P.E., M.ASCE James F Phipps, P.E., M.ASCE

Mihail E Popescu, Ph.D., P.E., EUR ING, M.ASCE

Daniel E Pradel, Ph.D., P.E., D.GE, F.ASCE Richard Thomas Reynolds, P.E., D.GE, M.ASCE

John David Rice, Ph.D., A.M.ASCE Stephen R Richards, P.E., M.ASCE Dario Rosidi, P.E., M.ASCE Jason Donald Ross, P.E., M.ASCE

Bassam Saad, Ph.D., P.Eng, M.ASCE

Abouzar Sadrekarimi

Vernon R. Schaefer, Ph.D., P.E., M.ASCE Andrew Robert Shinnefield, RG, P.G., CEG, M.ASCE

Francisco Silva-Tulla, P.E., M.ASCE Michael R Simac, P.E., M.ASCE

Timothy D Stark, Ph.D., P.E., D.GE, F.ASCE

Robert S Stephens, P.E., M.ASCE Binod Tiwari, P.E., M.ASCE

Daniel R Vanden Berge, P.E., M.ASCE Joseph Wartman, Ph.D., P.E., M.ASCE

Lei Wei, Ph.D., P.E., M.ASCE Ray Lee Wooten, P.E., M.ASCE

Stephen G Wright, Ph.D., P.E., M.ASCE

Ming Xiao, P.E., M.ASCE

#### **Engineering Geology and Site Characterization**

Xiong Yu, Ph.D., P.E., F.ASCE, *Chair*Aaron Scott Budge, P.E., M.ASCE, *Vice-Chair*Thomas Oommen, Ph.D., M.ASCE, *Secretary*Murad Yusuf Abufarsakh, Ph.D., P.E., M.ASCE

William Akin, P.E., M.ASCE

Khalid Ahmed Alshibli, P.E., M.ASCE Scott A Anderson, P.E., M.ASCE Jeramy Curtis Ashlock, Ph.D., A.M.ASCE

Bahri Burcin Avar, P.E.

Laurie Gaskins Baise, Ph.D., M.ASCE
Paola Bandini, Ph.D., P.E., M.ASCE
Tejo Vikash Bheemasetti, A.M.ASCE
Patrick Ethan Cargill, P.E., D.GE, M.ASCE
Amy Beth Cerato, Ph.D., P.E., M.ASCE

Vijay Kumar Chaudhry

Andrew K Cho, P.E., M.ASCE

Mala Roenick Ciancia, P.G., A.M.ASCE Joseph Thomas Coe, Jr., EIT, A.M.ASCE

Richard Aaron Coffman, Ph.D., P.E., L.S., M.ASCE

Brady R. Cox, Ph.D., P.E., A.M.ASCE Sheng Dai, Ph.D., A.M.ASCE, EIT Jason T DeJong, Ph.D., M.ASCE Shawnna L Erter, A.M.ASCE Dante O Fratta, A.M.ASCE

Quan Gao, A.M.ASCE

Malay Ghose Hajra, P.E., ENV SP, M.ASCE Richard E Gray, Hon.D.GE, Dist.M.ASCE

Abhipriya Halder, M.ASCE Chanjuan Han, S.M.ASCE

Carlton Louis Ho, Ph.D., P.E., M.ASCE

Laureano R Hoyos

Roman D Hryciw, Ph.D., M.ASCE Nick William Hudyma, P.E., M.ASCE Jessica Pence Humble, P.E., RG, M.ASCE

Frank Jalinoos, M.ASCE

Daniel Jankly, RG, CEG, Aff.M.ASCE

Ian Jefferson, Ph.D.

Allen L Jones, G.E., P.E., RG, P.G., M.ASCE

Jeffrey R Keaton, Ph.D., P.E., D.GE, P.G., ENV SP, F.ASCE

Michael R Lewis, P.E., F.ASCE

Jiliang Li, Ph.D., P.E., M.ASCE William J Likos, Ph.D., M.ASCE

Yan Liu, Ph.D., C.Eng, M.ASCE

Zhen Liu, A.M.ASCE

Zhen Liu, Ph.D., P.E., M.ASCE Ning Lu, Ph.D., F.EMI, F.ASCE

Gordon Moore Matheson, Ph.D., P.E., D.GE,

M.ASCE

Matthew Mauldon

Paul W Mayne, Ph.D., P.E., M.ASCE Gerald A Miller, Ph.D., P.E., M.ASCE Thomas Werner Pennington, P.E., M.ASCE

Roch S V Player, P.E., M.ASCE

Anand Jagadeesh Puppala, Ph.D., P.E., D.GE, F.ASCE

Eric Bruce Rehwoldt, P.E., P.G., M.ASCE

Brent L Rosenblad, P.E., M.ASCE David A Saftner, Ph.D., A.M.ASCE

Anna Shidlovskaya

Andrew Robert Shinnefield, RG, P.G., CEG,

M.ASCE

Nicholas Sitar, Ph.D., P.Eng, M.ASCE

Kevin Paul Stetson, A.M.ASCE

Junliang Tao, A.M.ASCE

Rachael Wright, EIT, A.M.ASCE

Hong Yang, Ph.D., P.E., P.G., CEG, M.ASCE

#### **Geoenvironmental Engineering**

Dimitrios Zekkos, Ph.D., P.E., M.ASCE, Chair

Arvin Farid, Ph.D., P.E., M.ASCE, Vice-Chair

Bate Bate, M.S., A.M.ASCE, Secretary

Tarek H Abichou, P.E., M.ASCE

Jeffrey A Adams, Ph.D., P.E., M.ASCE

Ayoade Adeyefa, P.E., M.ASCE

Akram Nimer Alshawabkeh, Ph.D., P.E., F.ASCE

Christopher Bareither, Ph.D., P.E., M.ASCE

Tugce Baser, S.M.ASCE

Craig Herbert Benson, Ph.D., P.E., D.GE, NAE,

F.ASCE

Gretchen Bohnhoff, P.E., M.ASCE

John Joseph Bowders, Jr., Ph.D., P.E., M.ASCE

Bora Cetin, Ph.D., A.M.ASCE Jiannan Chen, A.M.ASCE Maria Chrysochoou, A.M.ASCE Patricia J Culligan, Ph.D., M.ASCE Anirban De, Ph.D., P.E., F.ASCE Yan-Jun Du, Ph.D.

R. Jeffrey Dunn, Ph.D., P.E., D.GE, G.E., M.ASCE Tuncer B Edil, Ph.D., P.E., D.GE, Dist.M.ASCE Jeffrey Clinton Evans, Ph.D., P.E., F.ASCE

Carsten Hermann Floess, Ph.D., P.E., D.GE, F.ASCE

Kevin C. Foye, P.E., M.ASCE

Ehsan Ghazanfari, Ph.D., P.E., M.ASCE

Rajiv Kumar Giri, S.M.ASCE

Dennis G Grubb, Ph.D., P.E., M.ASCE Ranjiv Gupta, Ph.D., P.E., M.ASCE

Megan Leanore Hart, Ph.D., A.M.ASCE Hiroshan Hettiarachchi, P.E., M.ASCE

Md Sahadat Hossain, P.E., M.ASCE Said Iravani, Ph.D., P.E., F.ASCE

Navid Hussein Jafari, Ph.D., A.M.ASCE

Navid Hussein Jafari, Ph.D., A.M.ASCE

Navid Hussein Jafari, Ph.D., A.M.ASCE

Xin Kang, S.M.ASCE

Edward Kavazanjian, Jr., Ph.D., P.E., D.GE, NAE, F.ASCE

Milind Vishnu Khire, Ph.D., P.E.

Prabir Kumar Kolay, Ph.D., P.E., M.ASCE Pradeep U Kurup, D.GE, P.E., M.ASCE

Joan M. Larrahondo, A.M.ASCE Lin Li, Ph.D., P.E., F.ASCE

Michael Adam Malusis, P.E., M.ASCE John Scott McCartney, Ph.D., P.E., M.ASCE Jay Namunu Meegoda, Ph.D., P.E., F.ASCE Md Azizul Moqsud, Ph.D., A.M.ASCE

Dhani Bakhsh Narejo, M.ASCE Angelica Maria Palomino, A.M.ASCE

Hefu Pu, EIT, A.M.ASCE

Krishna R. Reddy, Ph.D., P.E., D.GE, ENV SP,

F.ASCE

Martin Aaron Reif, P.E., M.ASCE

Christopher R Ryan, P.E., D.GE, M.ASCE Kristin Sample-Lord, P.E., M.ASCE Joseph Scalia, IV, EIT, A.M.ASCE Vito Schifano, P.E., M.ASCE

Charles Duane Shackelford, Ph.D., P.E., F.ASCE Timothy D Stark, Ph.D., P.E., D.GE, F.ASCE

Burak F Tanyu, C.Eng, M.ASCE Kuo Tian, Ph.D., A.M.ASCE

Charles Wilk

Nazli Yesiller, A.M.ASCE

Lianyang Zhang, Ph.D., P.E., M.ASCE

## **Geophysical Engineering**

Brent L Rosenblad, P.E., M.ASCE, Chair

Hoda Azari, Ph.D., A.M.ASCE

Ronald Bell

Minsu Cha, Ph.D., A.M.ASCE Dar Hao Chen, Ph.D., P.E. Qingli Dai, A.M.ASCE

John Gordon Diehl, P.E., M.ASCE

William E Doll

Dante O Fratta, A.M.ASCE Khamis Y Haramy, A.M.ASCE Dennis R Hiltunen, M.ASCE

Rick A Hoover

Md Sahadat Hossain, P.E., M.ASCE Hudson Victor Jackson, M.ASCE

Frank Jalinoos, M.ASCE

Steven L. Kramer, Ph.D., P.E., M.ASCE Barbara Luke, Ph.D., P.E., D.GE, F.ASCE Paul Michaels, P.E., M.ASCE

Soheil Nazarian, Ph.D., P.E., D.GE, F.ASCE

Choon B Park, A.M.ASCE

Dayakar Penumadu, Ph.D., M.ASCE Benjamin Seabrook Rivers, P.E., M.ASCE

Glenn Jay Rix, M.ASCE

Michael Lamar Rucker, P.E., M.ASCE

Philip Sirles

Richard A Sullivan, P.E., F.ASCE Prajwol Tamrakar, S.M.ASCE Khiem Tran, Aff.M.ASCE Clint Miller Wood, A.M.ASCE Xiong Yu, Ph.D., P.E., F.ASCE Siavash Zamiran, MSc, M.ASCE

Manoochehr Zoghi, Ph.D., D.GE, G.E., P.E., F.ASCE

Nenad Gucunski, A.M.ASCE

## Geosynthetics

Jorge G Zornberg, Ph.D., P.E., F.ASCE, Chair

Mark H Wayne, Ph.D., P.E., M.ASCE, Vice-Chair

Jie Han, Ph.D., P.E., F.ASCE, Secretary

Murad Yusuf Abufarsakh, Ph.D., P.E., M.ASCE

Imad L Al-Qadi, Ph.D., P.E., Dist.M.ASCE Daniel Enrique Alzamora, P.E., M.ASCE

Alaa Kamal Ashmawy, P.E., M.ASCE

Ahmet Halit Aydilek, Ph.D., M.ASCE

Brian Baillie, P.E., M.ASCE Michael Bernardi, P.E., M.ASCE

Shobha K Bhatia, Ph.D., M.ASCE

Omer Bilgin, P.E., M.ASCE

Keaton Joseph Botelho, M.ASCE

Abdelmalek Bouazza

John Joseph Bowders, Jr., Ph.D., P.E., M.ASCE

Jian Chu, PHD

Ghada Shaker Ellithy, P.E., M.ASCE

Jongwan Eun, P.E., M.ASCE

Jeffrey Clinton Evans, Ph.D., P.E., F.ASCE

Mohammed Awad Gabr, Ph.D., D.GE, P.E., F.ASCE

Erol F Guler, Ph.D., M.ASCE

Kianoosh Hatami, M.ASCE

Robert D Holtz, Ph.D., P.E., D.GE, Dist.M.ASCE

Grace Hsuan

Marco Isola, P.E., M.ASCE
Wei Feng Lee, Ph.D., A.M.ASCE
Ben Adam Leshchinsky, A.M.ASCE
Hoe I Peter Ling, Ph.D., M.ASCE
Huabei Liu, Ph.D., M.ASCE
Robert Lozano, Aff.M.ASCE

Michael Patrick McGuire, Ph.D., P.E., M.ASCE James A McKelvey, III, P.E., D.GE, F.ASCE

Amr M. Morsy, S.M.ASCE Steven W Perkins, M.ASCE

John D Quaranta, Ph.D., P.E., M.ASCE Richard Alan Reid, Ph.D., P.E., F.ASCE C Joel Sprague, P.E., M.ASCE

Pietro Rimoldi

L. David Suits
Burak F Tanyu, C.Eng, M.ASCE
Richard J Valentine, P.E., M.ASCE
Kimberly Anne Warren, A.M.ASCE
Xiaoming Yang, P.E., M.ASCE
Ming Zhu, P.E., M.ASCE

Karl Johann Schwartz, P.E., M.ASCE

Michael R Simac, P.E., M.ASCE

Richard Sack, P.E., M.ASCE

James G Collin, Ph.D., P.E., D.GE, F.ASCE

#### **Geotechnics of Soil Erosion**

John David Rice, Ph.D., A.M.ASCE, Chair

Jennifer Elizabeth Nicks, P.E., M.ASCE, Vice-Chair

Benjamin Adams

George William Annandale, D.Eng., P.E., D.WRE,

F.ASCE

Shobha K Bhatia, Ph.D., M.ASCE

Jean-Louis Briaud, Ph.D., P.E., D.GE, Dist.M.ASCE

John G Delphia

Hande Gerkus, Ph.D., EIT, A.M.ASCE Donald Harford Gray, M.ASCE Hiroshan Hettiarachchi, P.E., M.ASCE Beatrice Elvira Hunt, P.E., M.ASCE

Ningjun Jiang, A.M.ASCE

Sai Prasad Kakuturu, EIT, M.ASCE

Jeffrey R Keaton, Ph.D., P.E., D.GE, P.G., ENV SP,

F.ASCE

Stacey Kulesza, P.E., M.ASCE

Lin Li, Ph.D., P.E., F.ASCE Cheng Lin, P.E., M.ASCE

Martin Mcilroy, P.E., RG, CEG, M.ASCE Radoslaw Lucas Michalowski, Ph.D., F.ASCE

Kam Weng Ng, Ph.D., P.E., M.ASCE

Peter G Nicholson, Ph.D., P.E., D.GE, F.ASCE

Abdolreza Osouli, Ph.D., P.E., M.ASCE

Tong Qiu, Ph.D., P.E., M.ASCE Peter R Robichaud, P.E., M.ASCE Inthuorn Sasanakul, A.M.ASCE Jennifer Lynn Smith, P.E., M.ASCE

Junliang Tao, A.M.ASCE Chen Wang, S.M.ASCE Ming Xiao, P.E., M.ASCE Xinbao Yu, P.E., M.ASCE Ming Zhu, P.E., M.ASCE

Thomas F Zimmie, P.E., D.GE, F.ASCE

#### Grouting

Paolo Gazzarrini, P.Eng, M.ASCE, Chair

Chadi S El Mohtar, Ph.D., A.M.ASCE, Vice-Chair

Britt N Babcock, P.E., M.ASCE

Samson Woodrow Bandimere, Aff.M.ASCE

Daniel Bole, A.M.ASCE

Grant Bonin Peter Bowman

Donald A. Bruce, Ph.D., D.GE, M.ASCE George Konrad Burke, P.E., D.GE, M.ASCE Michael Joseph Byle, P.E., D.GE, F.ASCE

Allen Cadden, P.E., D.GE, F.ASCE

C. Yoga Chandran, Ph.D., G.E., P.E., M.ASCE

Pierre Choquet, A.M.ASCE

Trent Larry Dreese, P.E., M.ASCE

John Edward Finnegan, P.E., M.ASCE

Drew Floyd, P.E., M.ASCE Paul M Gancarz, P.E., M.ASCE H Clay Griffin, M.ASCE Francis B Gularte, M.ASCE

Naresh Gurpersaud, P.Eng, M.ASCE

Joe Harris, Aff.M.ASCE Chu Eu Ho, P.Eng, M.ASCE

Adam North Hockenberry, A.M.ASCE

Doug Horvath, Aff.M.ASCE Hannah Maria Iezzoni, A.M.ASCE

Kenneth Bertone Ivanetich, P.E., M.ASCE

Michael G Jefferies, P.E.

Lawrence F Johnsen, P.E., D.GE, M.ASCE

Walter E Kaeck, P.E., M.ASCE Maren Katterbach, A.M.ASCE

Daniel Scott Kieffer, Ph.D., P.E., M.ASCE Walter G Kutschke, P.E., M.ASCE Rakam Lama Tamang, P.E., M.ASCE Steve C Maranowski, A.M.ASCE

Justice Jonathan Maswoswe, Ph.D., P.E., M.ASCE

Michael J Miluski, P.E., M.ASCE

Rafael J Morales, P.G.

Timothy J Myers, A.M.ASCE Silas Craig Nichols, M.ASCE Matthew John Niermann, P.E., M.ASCE

Adam Paisley, P.E., M.ASCE

Thomas D Richards, Jr., P.E., D.GE, M.ASCE

Dawn Alison Shuttle, Ph.D., M.ASCE Lucian Paul Spiteri, Jr., A.M.ASCE

Cumaraswamy Vipulanandan, Ph.D., P.E., M.ASCE

William Arthur Warfield, A.M.ASCE

James Warner, F.ASCE

Joseph P Welsh, P.E., F.ASCE

Peter T Yen

#### **Pavements**

Charles Warren Schwartz, Ph.D., M.ASCE, Chair

Halil Ceylan, Ph.D., A.M.ASCE, Vice-Chair

Ala Rebhi Abbas

Sanjeev Adhikari, A.M.ASCE

Imad L Al-Qadi, Ph.D., P.E., Dist.M.ASCE

Ahmad Alhasan, A.M.ASCE

Dragos Andrei, Ph.D., P.E., M.ASCE Joseph Kojo Anochie-Boateng, Ph.D.

Reza Ashtiani

Mohamadtaqi Baqersad, S.M.ASCE Amit Bhasin, Ph.D., A.M.ASCE

C. Yoga Chandran, Ph.D., G.E., P.E., M.ASCE

Karim Chatti, A.M.ASCE

Ghassan Riad Chehab, A.M.ASCE

Dar Hao Chen, Ph.D., P.E.

Xingwei Chen

Qingli Dai, A.M.ASCE

Samer Hassan Dessouky, Ph.D., P.E., F.ASCE

Daba Shabara Gedafa, P.E., M.ASCE Jacob Eskel Hiller, Ph.D., A.M.ASCE Isaac L. Howard, Ph.D., P.E., M.ASCE

Jonathan Embrey Howson

Baoshan Huang, Ph.D., P.E., M.ASCE Hannah Maria Iezzoni, A.M.ASCE Yong-Rak Kim, Ph.D., M.ASCE

Muhammed Emin Kutay, Ph.D., P.E., M.ASCE

Jayhyun Kwon, P.E., M.ASCE Juanyu Liu, P.E., M.ASCE Andreas Loizos, A.M.ASCE

Massimo Losa

Yang Lu, P.E., M.ASCE

Michael Sobhi Mamlouk, Ph.D., P.E., F.ASCE Paul Christopher Marshall, P.E., M.ASCE Eyad Ahmad Masad, Ph.D., P.E., F.ASCE Yusuf A Mehta, A.M.ASCE Roger W Meier, M.ASCE

Debakanta Mishra, Ph.D., A.M.ASCE

Maziar Moaveni

Louay Nadhim Mohammad, Ph.D., P.E., M.ASCE

Michael A Mooney, P.E., M.ASCE

Soheil Nazarian, Ph.D., P.E., D.GE, F.ASCE

Joshua Pablo

Athanassios T Papagiannakis, P.E., F.ASCE

Wei-Chou Virgil Ping, P.E., M.ASCE

Anand Jagadeesh Puppala, Ph.D., P.E., D.GE,

F.ASCE

Shadi-Mohd Saadeh, Ph.D., P.E., M.ASCE

Sireesh Saride, Ph.D., M.ASCE

Arthur John Schwidder, III, P.E., M.ASCE

Shihui Shen, A.M.ASCE

John A Siekmeier, P.E., M.ASCE

Pranshoo Solanki, Ph.D., P.E., A.M.ASCE

Ping Tian, P.E., M.ASCE
Hani H Titi, P.E., M.ASCE
Erol Tutumluer, Ph.D., M.ASCE
Waheed Uddin, Ph.D., P.E., M.ASCE
Pavana K R Vennapusa, P.E., M.ASCE

Chao Wang, Ph.D., A.M.ASCE Hao Wang, Ph.D., M.ASCE

Linbing Wang, Ph.D., Ph.D., P.E., M.ASCE

Haifang Wen, P.E., M.ASCE Yuanjie Xiao, EIT, S.M.ASCE

Fen Ye

Xiong Yu, Ph.D., P.E., F.ASCE

Bin Zhang Yanqing Zhao

Erol Tutumluer, Ph.D., M.ASCE

#### **Risk Assessment and Management**

D Vaughan Griffiths, Ph.D., D.GE, P.E., F.ASCE,

Chair

Limin Zhang, Ph.D., F.ASCE, *Secretary* Jomaa Ben-Hassine, P.E., P.Eng, M.ASCE Riccardo Cappa, Ph.D., P.E., M.ASCE

Jiun-Yih Chen, A.M.ASCE

Jianye Ching, Ph.D., C.Eng, M.ASCE

Haitham M. Dawood, EIT, Ph.D., A.M.ASCE Gordon Ashley Fenton, P.E., A.M.ASCE

Robert B Gilbert, Ph.D., P.E., D.GE, M.ASCE

Wenping Gong, Ph.D., A.M.ASCE

Yusuke Honjo Hongwei Huang

Jinsong Huang, M.ASCE

Nick William Hudyma, P.E., M.ASCE

Ramanujachari Kannan, D.GE, P.E., F.ASCE Jeffrey R Keaton, Ph.D., P.E., D.GE, P.G., ENV SP,

F.ASCE

Sangho Lee, P.E., M.ASCE

Dian-Qing Li, M.ASCE

Jiliang Li, Ph.D., P.E., M.ASCE Bak K Low, Ph.D., P.E., F.ASCE

Zhe Luo, A.M.ASCE

Zenon Medina-Cetina, A.M.ASCE Stanley Miller, Ph.D., P.E., M.ASCE Alireza Mirdamadi, Ph.D., P.E., M.ASCE Jack Montgomery, EIT, A.M.ASCE Robb Eric S Moss, Ph.D., P.E., F.ASCE

Farzaneh Naghibi

Shadi Najjar, D.Eng., A.M.ASCE

Kok-Kwang Phoon, Ph.D., P.E., F.ASCE

William John Roberds, EIT Lance A Roberts, A.M.ASCE

Adrian Rodriguez-Marek, Ph.D., M.ASCE Kallol Sett, Ph.D., EIT, A.M.ASCE

Abdul-Hamid Soubra, M.ASCE

Armin Wilhelm Stuedlein, P.E., M.ASCE

Nathan Thompson, P.E., M.ASCE

Erik H Vanmarcke, Ph.D., F.EMI, Dist.M.ASCE

Lei Wang, P.E., M.ASCE Yu Wang, M.ASCE

Tien H Wu, Ph.D., P.E., Hon.M.ASCE

Congpu Yao, P.E., M.ASCE Jie Zhang, Ph.D., A.M.ASCE Hongbo Zhou, Ph.D., P.E., M.ASCE C. Hsein Juang, Ph.D., P.E., F.ASCE

## **Rock Mechanics**

M Ronald Yeung, P.E., M.ASCE, *Chair*Jeffrey Kuhn, D.Eng., A.M.ASCE

Sarah H Wilson, P.E., M.ASCE, Secretary Pinnaduwa H S W Kulatilake, Ph.D., P.E., F.ASCE

Ange-Therese Akono, A.M.ASCE Joseph F Labuz, Ph.D., P.E., F.ASCE

Chloe Arson, Aff.M.ASCE Mary M. MacLaughlin Pooyan Asadollahi, Ph.D., EIT Matthew Mauldon Antonio Bobet, P.E., M.ASCE Joe Morris

Charles H Dowding, Ph.D., P.E., D.GE, Dist.M.ASCE

Louis Ngai Yuen Wong

Herbert Heinrich Einstein, P.E., F.ASCE

Abdolreza Osouli, Ph.D., P.E., M.ASCE

Ehsan Ghazanfari, Ph.D., P.E., M.ASCE

Marte Sta Maria Gutierrez, A.M.ASCE

Ingrid Tomac, A.M.ASCE

Ahmadreza Hedayat, A.M.ASCE Fulvio Tonon, P.E., M.ASCE

Nick William Hudyma, P.E., M.ASCE Yuannian Wang

Nick William Hudyma, P.E., M.ASCE
Carlos Alberto Jaramillo, P.E., M.ASCE
Siavash Zamiran, MSc, M.ASCE

Eunhye Kim, P.E., EIT, M.ASCE Lianyang Zhang, Ph.D., P.E., M.ASCE

#### Shallow Foundations

Derrick D Dasenbrock, P.E., EIT, F.ASCE, Chair John

Xiong Zhang, A.M.ASCE, Vice-Chair

Seunghee Kim, M.ASCE

John R Davie, P.E., M.ASCE, Secretary Marshall B Addison, P.E., M.ASCE

Venkata Bhadriraju, P.E., M.ASCE

Jean-Louis Briaud, Ph.D., P.E., D.GE, Dist.M.ASCE

Shunyi Chen, P.E., M.ASCE Blake Eric Cotton, P.E., M.ASCE

Wayne E Ferree, F.ASCE

Malay Ghose Hajra, P.E., ENV SP, M.ASCE

Adel Micheal Hanna, Ph.D., P.E., F.ASCE

Sandra L Houston, Ph.D., D.GE, M.ASCE

Mohammad Sadik Khan, P.E., M.ASCE

Philip G. King, P.E., D.GE, F.ASCE

Mark E. Kubena, P.E., M.ASCE

Daniel Joseph Rich, P.E., M.ASCE

Joseph Ray Meyer, P.E., M.ASCE

Edward Dale Prost, Jr., P.E., M.ASCE

Anand Jagadeesh Puppala, Ph.D., P.E., D.GE,

Shad M Sargand, M.ASCE

F.ASCE

Kenneth Michael Struzyk, P.E., M.ASCE

Chia K Tan, Ph.D., P.E., D.GE, F.ASCE

David Joshua White, Ph.D., P.E., M.ASCE

Warren Kent Wray, Ph.D., P.E., D.GE, F.ASCE

Arvind Sadashiv Kumbhojkar, Ph.D., P.E., F.ASCE

## **Soil Improvement**

Jie Han, Ph.D., P.E., F.ASCE, Chair

Antonio Marinucci, MBA, P.E., Ph.D., M.ASCE,

Secretary

Sherif Lotfy Abdel Motaleb Abdelaziz, EIT,

A.M.ASCE

Juan Ivan Baez, A.M.ASCE

William M Camp, III, P.E., D.GE, M.ASCE

Bhaskar C.S. Chittoori, Ph.D., P.E., M.ASCE

Jose Luiz Machado Clemente, Ph.D., P.E., D.GE,

F.ASCE

James G Collin, Ph.D., P.E., D.GE, F.ASCE

Fathey N Elsaid, P.E., M.ASCE

Raymond J Franz, P.E., D.GE, M.ASCE

Herath Mahi Galagoda, Ph.D., P.E., A.M.ASCE

Angel Gutierrez, EIT

James Christopher Hite, M.ASCE

Jie Huang, P.E., M.ASCE

James D Hussin, P.E., M.ASCE

Buddhima Nalin Indraratna, F.ASCE

Yan Jiang, P.E., M.ASCE

Prabir Kumar Kolay, Ph.D., P.E., M.ASCE

Guoming Lin, Ph.D., P.E., D.GE, F.ASCE

Scott M Mackiewicz, P.E., D.GE, M.ASCE

Ali Maher, M.ASCE

Brian Christop Metcalfe, P.E., M.ASCE

Silas Craig Nichols, M.ASCE

Peter G Nicholson, Ph.D., P.E., D.GE, F.ASCE

Amin Rahmani, Ph.D., A.M.ASCE

Deepak Rayamajhi, Ph.D., A.M.ASCE

Kyle M Rollins, Ph.D., M.ASCE

Amr Mohamed Sallam, Ph.D., P.E., P.E., M.ASCE

Zachary David Scarboro, P.E., M.ASCE

Vernon R. Schaefer, Ph.D., P.E., M.ASCE

Allen Lee Sehn, Ph.D., P.E., M.ASCE

Lisheng Shao, G.E., P.E., M.ASCE

Rakshya Shrestha

Timothy Carl Siegel, P.E., D.GE, M.ASCE

Gregory E Simmons, P.E., M.ASCE

William Lyle Simonton, P.E., M.ASCE

Muhannad Taher Suleiman, A.M.ASCE

Amirata Taghavi, EIT, A.M.ASCE

Martin G Taube, P.E., M.ASCE

Rimas Veitas

Fei Wang, Aff.M.ASCE

Christian Bernard Woods, P.E., D.GE, G.E., M.ASCE

Kord J Wissmann, Ph.D., P.E., D.GE, M.ASCE

Armin Wilhelm Stuedlein, P.E., M.ASCE, Webmaster

## **Soil Properties and Modeling**

T. Matthew Evans, Ph.D., A.M.ASCE, Chair

Brina Mortensen Montoya, Ph.D., P.E., M.ASCE,

Vice-Chair

Bashar Alramahi

Mustafa I Alsaleh, P.E.

Khalid Ahmed Alshibli, P.E., M.ASCE

Jose E Andrade, Ph.D., M.ASCE

Haydar Arslan

Robert Charles Bachus, P.E., D.GE, M.ASCE

Chris David Baxter, A.M.ASCE

Michelle Lee Bernhardt, Ph.D., A.M.ASCE

Andrew C. Brown, P.E., M.ASCE

Giuseppe Buscarnera, Ph.D., Aff.M.ASCE

Minsu Cha, Ph.D., A.M.ASCE

C. Yoga Chandran, Ph.D., G.E., P.E., M.ASCE

Qiushi Chen, Ph.D., EIT, A.M.ASCE

Michael Lach Coryell, P.E., M.ASCE Sheng Dai, Ph.D., A.M.ASCE, EIT Don Johan DeGroot, M.ASCE Jason T DeJong, Ph.D., M.ASCE Mandar M Dewoolkar, P.E., M.ASCE Chadi S El Mohtar, Ph.D., A.M.ASCE Andrew Fuggle

Aaron Peter Gallant, EIT, A.M.ASCE

Louis Ge, M.ASCE

Michael Gregory Gomez, A.M.ASCE Joao Antonio Harb Carraro, A.M.ASCE Gregory Lawrence Hebeler, P.E., M.ASCE Andrew Gerard Heydinger, Ph.D., P.E., F.ASCE Sandra L Houston, Ph.D., D.GE, M.ASCE

Laureano R Hoyos

Pao-Tsung Huang, A.M.ASCE

Nick William Hudyma, P.E., M.ASCE

Cheng-Ping Jiang

Victor Nicholas Kaliakin, Ph.D., M.ASCE

Yazen Khasawneh, P.E., M.ASCE Poul V Lade, Ph.D., M.ASCE Melissa E Landon, A.M.ASCE Xiang-Song Li, P.E., F.ASCE Ning Lu, Ph.D., F.EMI, F.ASCE Jay Namunu Meegoda, Ph.D., P.E., F.ASCE Balasingam Muhunthan, P.E., F.ASCE

Kanthasamy Kadirgamer Muraleetharan, Ph.D., P.E., F.ASCE

Chukwuebuka Nweke, EIT, S.M.ASCE

Ujwalkumar Dashrath Patil, Ph.D., P.E., M.ASCE Juan M Pestana-Nascimento, P.E., M.ASCE Nadarajah Ravichandran, Ph.D., M.ASCE

Richard Regueiro

Cassandra J Rutherford, Ph.D., P.E., M.ASCE

Bassam Saad, Ph.D., P.Eng, M.ASCE

Marcelo Javier Sanchez, Ph.D., Aff.M.ASCE

Marika C Santagata, Ph.D., M.ASCE Karl Johann Schwartz, P.E., M.ASCE Radhey Shyam Sharma, M.ASCE Kurt Jon Sjoblom, Ph.D., A.M.ASCE

Beena Sukumaran, M.ASCE Audai Theinat, EIT, S.M.ASCE Audai Theinat, EIT, S.M.ASCE Audai Theinat, EIT, S.M.ASCE Luis E Vallejo, A.M.ASCE

Cumaraswamy Vipulanandan, Ph.D., P.E., M.ASCE

Andrew J Whittle, Ph.D., M.ASCE Jeong Yun Won, P.E., C.Eng, M.ASCE

## Sustainability In Geotechnical Engineering

Jeffrey R Keaton, Ph.D., P.E., D.GE, P.G., ENV SP, F.ASCE, *Chair* 

Dipanjan Basu, Ph.D., C.Eng, M.ASCE, *Vice-Chair* Bhaskar C.S. Chittoori, Ph.D., P.E., M.ASCE,

Secretary
Benjamin Adams
Arul Arulrajah

Tejo Vikash Bheemasetti, A.M.ASCE

Bora Cetin, Ph.D., A.M.ASCE

Rossana Genise D'Antonio, P.E., F.ASCE Derrick D Dasenbrock, P.E., EIT, F.ASCE Jeffrey Clinton Evans, Ph.D., P.E., F.ASCE

Jeffrey Clinton Evans, Ph.D., P.E., F.ASCE

Arvin Farid, Ph.D., P.E., M.ASCE Hande Gerkus, Ph.D., EIT, A.M.ASCE Omid Ghasemi Fare, Ph.D., A.M.ASCE Malay Ghose Hajra, P.E., ENV SP, M.ASCE

Ranjiv Gupta, Ph.D., P.E., M.ASCE

Jianying Hu, S.M.ASCE

Golam Kibria, P.E., A.M.ASCE Seunghee Kim, M.ASCE

Barbara Luke, Ph.D., P.E., D.GE, F.ASCE

Samantha L Magsino

William S Man, P.E., M.ASCE

Kimberly Kathryn Martin, P.E., S.M.ASCE

Boo Hyun Nam, Ph.D., A.M.ASCE

Guney Guney Olgun, PHD Aravind Pedarla, P.E., M.ASCE

Anand Jagadeesh Puppala, Ph.D., P.E., D.GE, F.ASCE

Krishna R. Reddy, Ph.D., P.E., D.GE, ENV SP, F.ASCE

Matthew Daniel Riegel, P.E., D.GE, M.ASCE Anthony Joseph Scairono, EI, A.M.ASCE

Burak F Tanyu, C.Eng, M.ASCE Shashank Valluru, P.E., M.ASCE Ming Xiao, P.E., M.ASCE

## **Underground Engineering & Construction**

Thomas Werner Pennington, P.E., M.ASCE, *Chair* Debra F Laefer, Ph.D., EI, M.ASCE, *Vice-Chair* Sotirios Vardakos, Ph.D., A.M.ASCE, *Secretary* 

John Abdalkhani, P.E., M.ASCE Alireza Ayoubian, P.E., M.ASCE

Glenn Markland Boyce, Ph.D., P.E., F.ASCE

Randall Charles Divito, P.E., P.Eng, M.ASCE

Elizabeth Marie Dwyre, P.E., D.GE, M.ASCE

Elizabeth Marie Dwyre, P.E., D.GE, M.ASCE Conrad W Felice, Ph.D., P.E., D.GE, F.ASCE

Andrew James Finney, G.E., P.E., P.Eng, M.ASCE

Lizan Nichole Gilbert, P.E., M.ASCE

Jean Habimana, P.E.

Youssef M A Hashash, Ph.D., P.E., F.ASCE

Ahmadreza Hedayat, A.M.ASCE

Evangelia Ieronymaki, Ph.D., A.M.ASCE D Thomas Iseley, Ph.D., P.E., Dist.M.ASCE

Eunhye Kim, P.E., EIT, M.ASCE

Antonio Marinucci

Michael A Mooney, P.E., M.ASCE

Abdolreza Osouli, Ph.D., P.E., M.ASCE

Ravee Raveendra, P.E., G.E., M.ASCE Gregory Paul Sherry, P.E., M.ASCE

Audai Theinat, EIT, S.M.ASCE

Eric Chuen-Hau Wang, P.E., M.ASCE

#### **Unsaturated Soils**

Laureano R Hoyos, Chair

John Scott McCartney, Ph.D., P.E., M.ASCE, *Vice-Chair* 

William J Likos, Ph.D., M.ASCE, Secretary

Idil Deniz Akin, A.M.ASCE

David Arellano, P.E., M.ASCE

Tugce Baser, S.M.ASCE

Bate Bate, M.S., A.M.ASCE

Ernest Samuel Berney, IV, P.E., M.ASCE

Merve Gizem Bozkurt, Ph.D., A.M.ASCE

John Thomas Bryant, Ph.D., P.E., P.G., D.GE, M.ASCE

Muniram Budhu, Ph.D., P.E., M.ASCE

Rifat Bulut, Ph.D., M.ASCE

Giuseppe Buscarnera, Ph.D., Aff.M.ASCE

John B Case, P.E., M.ASCE

Kuo-Chieh Chao, Ph.D., P.E., M.ASCE

Bhaskar C.S. Chittoori, Ph.D., P.E., M.ASCE

Deepankar Choudhury, Ph.D., M.ASCE

Douglas Cobos, Ph.D., A.M.ASCE

Yi Dong, EIT, A.M.ASCE

Jongwan Eun, P.E., M.ASCE

Peter Fleming, P.E., M.ASCE

Delwyn G Fredlund, P.E., D.GE, M.ASCE

Louis Ge, M.ASCE

Omid Ghasemi Fare, Ph.D., A.M.ASCE

Majid Ghayoomi, Ph.D., A.M.ASCE

Andrew Gerard Heydinger, Ph.D., P.E., F.ASCE

Sandra L Houston, Ph.D., D.GE, M.ASCE

Liangbo Hu, A.M.ASCE

Xin Kang, S.M.ASCE

Mohammad Sadik Khan, P.E., M.ASCE

Morteza Khorshidi, Aff.M.ASCE

Ali Khosravi, Aff.M.ASCE

Lyesse Laloui, Ph.D.

Chunyang Liu, M.ASCE

Zhen Liu, Ph.D., P.E., M.ASCE

Ning Lu, Ph.D., F.EMI, F.ASCE

Robert L Lytton, Ph.D., P.E., D.GE, F.ASCE

Kalehiwot Nega Manahiloh, Ph.D., P.E., M.ASCE

Zeljorad Maricic, EIT, A.M.ASCE

Gerald A Miller, Ph.D., P.E., M.ASCE

Kanthasamy Kadirgamer Muraleetharan, Ph.D., P.E.,

F.ASCE

Dakshana Murthy, P.E., D.GE, M.ASCE

Iraj Noorany, Ph.D., P.E., G.E., F.ASCE

Homer W Parker, P.E., M.ASCE

Ujwalkumar Dashrath Patil, Ph.D., P.E., M.ASCE

Dunja Peric, Ph.D., A.M.ASCE

Joshua Michael Peschel, Ph.D., A.M.ASCE

Anand Jagadeesh Puppala, Ph.D., P.E., D.GE,

F.ASCE

Nadarajah Ravichandran, Ph.D., M.ASCE

Marcelo Javier Sanchez, Ph.D., Aff.M.ASCE

Charles Duane Shackelford, Ph.D., P.E., F.ASCE

Radhey Shyam Sharma, M.ASCE

Mahendra Shewalla, P.E., M.ASCE

John A Siekmeier, P.E., M.ASCE

Gregory Allen Siemens, EIT, A.M.ASCE

Sujithan Somasundaram, P.E., M.ASCE

Chung Rak Song, Ph.D., P.E., M.ASCE

Xiaoyu Song, A.M.ASCE

Jeremiah Stache, P.E., M.ASCE William J Sullivan, P.E., M.ASCE Farshid Vahedifard, P.E., M.ASCE Sai K Vanapalli, Ph.D., P.Eng, M.ASCE Jairo Edmundo Yepes, Aff.M.ASCE Xinbao Yu, P.E., M.ASCE Xiong Yu, Ph.D., P.E., F.ASCE Claudia Elena Zapata, A.M.ASCE Bo Zhang, A.M.ASCE Xiong Zhang, A.M.ASCE Yida Zhang, Aff.M.ASCE Jorge G Zornberg, Ph.D., P.E., F.ASCE